
Planning Commission meetings are broadcast live on cable channel TV Fargo 56 and can be seen live at 
www.FargoND.gov/streaming. They are rebroadcast each Wednesday at 8:00 a.m. and Sunday at 8:00 a.m.; and are also included in 
our video archive at www.FargoND.gov/PlanningCommission.  
 
People with disabilities who plan to attend the meeting and need special accommodations should contact the Planning Office  
at 701.241.1474. Please contact us at least 48 hours before the meeting to give our staff adequate time to make arrangements. 
 
Minutes are available on the City of Fargo Web site at www.FargoND.gov/planningcommission. 

FARGO PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
Tuesday, March 2, 2021 at 3:00 p.m. 

 
 

 
A: Approve Order of Agenda 
 
B: Minutes:  Regular Meeting of February 2, 2021 
 
C: Brown Bag Luncheon - Wednesday, March 17, 2021 
 
D: Public Hearing Items: 
 
1.  Continued hearing on an application requesting a Growth Plan Amendment on an unplatted 

portion of Section 5, Township 138 North, Range 49 West. (Located at 5702 52nd Avenue 
South) (Four Horsemen, LLC/Nate Vollmuth) (dk): CONTINUED TO APRIL 6, 2021 

 
2. Continued hearing on an application requesting a LDC Text Amendment to Article 20-09 to 

create Section 20-0907.E, Vacation of Right of Way. (City of Fargo) (dk): WITHDRAWN 
 
3a. Continued hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from MR-3, Multi-Dwelling 

Residential to DMU, Downtown Mixed-Use within the boundaries of the proposed 220 Addition. 
(Located at 214 and 220 6th Avenue North) (Jerry & Jean Pladson) (ms) 

 
3b. Continued hearing on an application requesting a Plat of 220 Addition (Minor Subdivision) a 

replat of Lot 8, and part of Lot 9, Block 31, Keeney and Devitts Second Addition, to the City of 
Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 214 and 220 6th Avenue North) (Jerry & Jean 
Pladson) (ms) 

 
4a.  Continued hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from LI, Limited Industrial, GC, 

General Commercial, and GC, General Commercial with a C-O, Conditional Overlay to GC, 
General Commercial with a PUD, Planned Unit Development Overlay and a request to repeal 
the C-O, Conditional Overlay within the boundaries of the proposed Brewhalla Addition. 
(Located at 1612, 1620, 1624, 1630, 1632, 1666, and 1702 1st Avenue North) (MBA 
Investments, LLC) (me) 

 
4b.   Continued hearing an application requesting a Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan 

and Final Plan within the boundaries of the proposed Brewhalla Addition. (Located at 1612, 
1620, 1624, 1630, 1632, 1666, and 1702 1st Avenue North) (MBA Investments, LLC) (me) 

 
4c. Continued hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Brewhalla Addition (Minor 

Subdivision) a replat of Blocks 26 and 27, the vacated “L” Street (16 ½ Street North), the West 
25 feet of vacated West Street (16th Street North), and part of the vacated Northern Pacific 
Avenue, Reeves Addition; replat of part of Lot 5, Milwaukee Addition; plat of Auditor’s Lot No. 1 
of the South Half of Section 1, Township 139 North, Range 49 West; and a plat of an unplatted 

http://www.fargond.gov/streaming
http://www.fargond.gov/PlanningCommission
http://www.fargond.gov/planningcommission


Planning Commission meetings are broadcast live on cable channel TV Fargo 56 and can be seen live at 
www.FargoND.gov/streaming. They are rebroadcast each Wednesday at 8:00 a.m. and Sunday at 8:00 a.m.; and are also included in 
our video archive at www.FargoND.gov/PlanningCommission.  
 
People with disabilities who plan to attend the meeting and need special accommodations should contact the Planning Office  
at 701.241.1474. Please contact us at least 48 hours before the meeting to give our staff adequate time to make arrangements. 
 
Minutes are available on the City of Fargo Web site at www.FargoND.gov/planningcommission. 

part of the South Half of said Section 1, to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. 
(Located at 1612, 1620, 1624, 1630, 1632, 1666, and 1702 1st Avenue North) (MBA 
Investments, LLC) (me) 

 
5a. Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from GC, General Commercial with a C-

O, Conditional Overlay to GC, General Commercial with a PUD, Planned Unit Development 
Overlay and a request to repeal the C-O, Conditional Overlay within the boundaries of the 
proposed EOLA Addition. (Located at 2500 45th Street South) (EOLA Landholdings, LLC/EPIC 
Companies) (me) 

 
5b. Hearing on an application requesting a Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan within 

the boundaries of the proposed EOLA Addition. (Located at 2500 45th Street South) (EOLA 
Landholdings, LLC/EPIC Companies) (me) 

 
5c. Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of EOLA Addition (Major Subdivision) a replat of 

Lot 4, Block 1, Anderson Park Second Addition to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota, 
including a waiver for a reduced street Right of Way. (Located at 2470 and 2500 45th Street 
South) (EOLA Landholdings, LLC & City of Fargo/EPIC Companies) (me) 

 
6.  Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from MR-2, Multi-Dwelling Residential to 

NO, Neighborhood Office on Lot 1, Block 1, Rowe’s Addition. (Located at 619 University Drive 
South) (Bradley and Lisa Johnson) (an): CONTINUED TO APRIL 6, 2021 

 
7. Hearing on an application requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow manufacturing and 

production, industrial services, and warehouse and freight movement uses in the GC, General 
Commercial zoning district on Lot 3, Block 2, Rocking Horse East Second Addition. (Located 
at 5454, 5458, 5462, 5466, 5470, 5474, 5478, 5482, 5486, 5490, 5494, and 5498 51st Avenue 
South) (Jerry and Terasina Hintz) (kb) 

 
8. Hearing on an application requesting to repeal a Conditional Use Permit to allow residential use 

in the LC, Limited Commercial zoning district on Lots 1-5, Block 1, Urban Plains by Brandt 
Fifth Addition and re-establish a Conditional Use Permit to allow residential use in the LC, 
Limited Commercial zoning district on Lot 1, Block 1, Urban Plains by Brandt Fifth Addition. 
(Located at 5600 28th Avenue South; 2850, 2901, 2970, and 2975 Uptown Way South) (Uptown 
and Main V, LLC/Urban Plains Land Co, LLC) (ms) 

 
9.  Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from SR-3, Single-Dwelling Residential 

to NC, Neighborhood Commercial on portions of Lots 1, 23, and 24, Block K, Chas A. Roberts 
Addition. (Located at 615 9th Avenue South) (Paul and Kathryn Anderson) (ms) 

 
E: Other Items: 
 
1.  Review of a proposed Renewal Plan and Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District No. 2021-01 for 

consistency with the GO2030 Comprehensive Plan. (jg) 
 

http://www.fargond.gov/streaming
http://www.fargond.gov/PlanningCommission
http://www.fargond.gov/planningcommission


BOARD OF PLANNING COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES 

 
Regular Meeting:  Tuesday, February 2, 2021 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Planning Commissioners of the City of Fargo, 
North Dakota, was held virtually in the Commission Chambers at City Hall at 3:00 p.m., 
Tuesday, February 2, 2021. 
 
The Planning Commissioners present or absent were as follows: 
 
Present: Rocky Schneider, Melissa Sobolik, Scott Stofferahn, Maranda Tasa, 

Jennifer Holtz, Dawn Morgan 
 
Absent: John Gunkelman, Art Rosenberg, Mary Scherling 
 
Vice Chair Schneider called the meeting to order. 
 
Business Items: 
Item A: Approve Order of Agenda 
Vice Chair Schneider noted Items 1, 2, 6a, and 6b are continued to March 2, 2021. 
 
Member Sobolik moved the Order of Agenda be approved as presented. Second by 
Member Stofferahn. All Members present voted aye and the motion was declared 
carried. 
 
Item B: Minutes:  Regular Meeting of January 5, 2021 
Member Stofferahn moved the minutes of the January 5, 2021 Planning Commission 
meeting be approved. Second by Member Tasa. All Members present voted aye and 
the motion was declared carried. 
 
Item C: February 17, 2021 Brown Bag Luncheon: Cancelled 
 
Item D: Public Hearing Items: 
 
Member Sobolik moved to continue Items 1, 2, 6a, and 6b to the March 2, 2021 
Planning Commission meeting. Second by Member Holtz. All Members present voted 
aye and the motion was declared carried. 
 
Item 1: Section 5, Township 138 North, Range 49 West. 
Continued hearing on an application requesting a Growth Plan Amendment on an 
unplatted portion of Section 5, Township 138 North, Range 49 West. (Located at 
5702 52nd Avenue South) (Four Horsemen, LLC/Nate Vollmuth): CONTINUED TO 
MARCH 2, 2021 
A Hearing had been set for November 3, 2020. At the November 3, 2020 meeting, the 
Hearing was continued to December 1, 2020. At the December 1, 2020 meeting, the 



Planning Commission 
February 2, 2021  Page No. 2 
 
Hearing was continued to January 5, 2021. At the January 5, 2021 meeting, the Hearing 
was continued to this date and time; however, the applicant has requested this item be 
continued to March 2, 2021. 
 
Item 2: LDC Text Amendment 
Continued hearing on an application requesting a LDC Text Amendment to Article 
20-09 to create Section 20-0907.E, Vacation of Right of Way. (City of Fargo): 
CONTINUED TO FEBRUARY 2, 2021 
A Hearing had been set for December 1, 2020. At the December 1, 2020 meeting, the 
Hearing was continued January 5, 2021. At the January 5, 2021 meeting, the Hearing 
was continued to this date and time; however, the applicant has requested this item be 
continued to March 2, 2021. 
 
Item 3: Sanford Addition 
3a. Hearing on an application requesting a Growth Plan Amendment within the 
boundaries of the proposed Sanford Addition. (Located at 6103 38th Street South) 
(Sanford North): APPROVED 
  
3b. Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from AG, 
Agricultural to LC, Limited Commercial, with a C-O, Conditional Overlay, and P/I, 
Public and Institutional within the boundaries of the proposed Sanford Addition. 
(Located at 6103 38th Street South) (Sanford North): APPROVED 
 
3c. Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Sanford Addition (Major 
Subdivision) a plat of part of the Southeast Quarter and a portion of the Northeast 
Quarter of Section 3, Township 138 North, Range 49 West, to the City of Fargo, 
Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 6103 38th Street South) (Sanford North): 
APPROVED 
Planning Coordinator Aaron Nelson presented the staff report stating all approval 
criteria have been met and staff is recommending approval. 
 
Discussion was held on ownership of the property. 
 
Applicant representatives Phil Siek and Craig Bjur spoke on behalf of the application. 
 
Member Holtz moved the findings and recommendations of staff be accepted and 
approval be recommended to the City Commission of the proposed 1) Growth Plan 
Amendment, 2) Zoning Change from AG, Agricultural to P/I, Public and Institutional, and 
LC, Limited Commercial, with a C-O, Conditional Overlay, and 3) Subdivision Plat 
Sanford Addition as outlined within the staff report, as the proposal complies with the 
2007 Growth Plan, the GO2030 Fargo Comprehensive Plan, the Standards of Article 
20-06, Section 20-0906.F (1-4), and Section 20-0905.H of the Land Development Code 
and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code. Second by 
Member Sobolik. On call of the roll Members Sobolik, Stofferahn, Holtz, Tasa, Morgan, 
and Schneider voted aye. Absent and not voting: Members Gunkelman, Scherling, and 
Rosenberg. The motion was declared carried. 



Planning Commission 
February 2, 2021  Page No. 3 
 
 
Item 4: Brewhalla Addition 
4a.  Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from LI, Limited 
Industrial, GC, General Commercial, and GC, General Commercial with a C-O, 
Conditional Overlay to GC, General Commercial with a PUD, Planned Unit 
Development Overlay and a request to repeal the C-O, Conditional Overlay within 
the boundaries of the proposed Brewhalla Addition. (Located at 1612, 1620, 1624, 
1630, 1632, 1666, and 1702 1st Avenue North) (MBA Investments, LLC): 
CONTINUED TO MARCH 2, 2021 
 
4b.   Hearing an application requesting a Planned Unit Development Master Land 
Use Plan and Final Plan within the boundaries of the proposed Brewhalla 
Addition. (Located at 1612, 1620, 1624, 1630, 1632, 1666, and 1702 1st Avenue 
North) (MBA Investments, LLC): CONTINUED TO MARCH 2, 2021 
 
4c. Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Brewhalla Addition (Minor 
Subdivision) a replat of Blocks 26 and 27, the vacated “L” Street (16 ½ Street 
North), the West 25 feet of vacated West Street (16th Street North), and part of the 
vacated Northern Pacific Avenue, Reeves Addition; replat of part of Lot 5, 
Milwaukee Addition; plat of Auditor’s Lot No. 1 of the South Half of Section 1, 
Township 139 North, Range 49 West; and a plat of an unplatted part of the South 
Half of said Section 1, to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. (Located 
at 1612, 1620, 1624, 1630, 1632, 1666, and 1702 1st Avenue North) (MBA 
Investments, LLC): CONTINUED TO MARCH 2, 2021 
Planning Coordinator Maegin Elshaug presented the staff report stating staff is bringing 
this item forward to hear public comments and allow preliminary discussion by the 
Planning Commission, and at this time staff is recommended this item be continued to 
the March 2, 2021 Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Applicants Kevin Bartram, MBA Investments, and Mark Bjornstad, Drekker Brewing, 
spoke on behalf of the application. 
 
Discussion was held on the property ownership and the zero lot line. 
 
Member Sobolik moved to continue this item to the March 2, 2021 Planning 
Commission meeting. Second by Member Stofferahn. On call of the roll Members Tasa, 
Sobolik, Stofferahn, Holtz, Morgan, and Schneider voted aye. Absent and not voting: 
Members Gunkelman, Rosenberg, and Scherling. The motion was declared carried. 
 
Item 5: Asleson Farms Fourth Addition 
5a. Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from MR-2, Multi-
Dwelling Residential to LC, Limited Commercial within the boundaries of the 
proposed Asleson Farms Fourth Addition. (Located at 3523 and 3575 41st Street 
South) (JNB Properties, LLC): APPROVED 
 



Planning Commission 
February 2, 2021  Page No. 4 
 
5b. Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Asleson Farms Fourth 
Addition (Minor Subdivision) a replat of a portion of Lot 3, and all of Lot 4, Block 
1, Asleson Farms Third Addition, to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. 
(Located at 3523 and 3575 41st Street South) (JNB Properties, LLC): APPROVED 
Assistant Planner Maggie Squyer presented the staff report stating all approval criteria 
have been met and staff is recommending approval. 
 
Applicant representative Nick Dietrich spoke on behalf of the application. 
 
Member Stofferahn moved the findings and recommendations of staff be accepted and 
approval be recommended to the City Commission of the proposed 1) Zoning Change 
from MR-2, Multi-Dwelling Residential to LC, Limited Commercial, and 2) Subdivision 
Plat Asleson Farms Fourth Addition as outlined in the staff report, as the proposal 
complies with the 2003 Southwest Future Growth Plan, the Standards of Article 20-06, 
Section 20-0906.F (1-4) of the Land Development Code, and all other applicable 
requirements of the Land Development Code. Second by Member Morgan. On call of 
the roll Members Stofferahn, Tasa, Morgan, Holtz, Sobolik, and Schneider voted aye. 
Absent and not voting: Members Scherling, Gunkelman, and Rosenberg. The motion 
was declared carried. 
 
Item 6: 220 Addition 
6a. Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from MR-3, Multi-
Dwelling Residential to DMU, Downtown Mixed-Use within the boundaries of the 
proposed 220 Addition. (Located at 214 and 220 6th Avenue North) (Jerry & Jean 
Pladson): CONTINUED TO MARCH 2, 2021 
 
6b. Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of 220 Addition (Minor 
Subdivision) a replat of Lot 8, and part of Lot 9, Block 31, Keeney and Devitts 
Second Addition, to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 
214 and 220 6th Avenue North) (Jerry & Jean Pladson): CONTINUED TO MARCH 
2, 2021 
A Hearing had been set for this date and time; however, the applicant has requested 
this item be continued to March 2, 2021. 
 
Item 7: Timber Parkway Fifth Addition 
Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Timber Parkway Fifth Addition 
(Minor Subdivision) a replat of Lots 1 and 2, Block 1, Timber Parkway Third 
Addition, to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 5055 and 
5161 Timber Parkway South) (PLC Investments, LLC/Christianson Companies): 
APPROVED 
Planning Coordinator Donald Kress presented the staff report stating all approval 
criteria have been met and staff is recommending approval. 
 
Applicant representative Blake Carlson spoke on behalf of the application. 
 



Planning Commission 
February 2, 2021  Page No. 5 
 
Member Sobolik moved the findings and recommendations of staff be accepted and 
approval be recommended to the City Commission of the proposed Subdivision Plat 
Timber Parkway Fifth Addition as outlined within the staff report, as the proposal 
complies with the standards of Article 20-06 of the Land Development Code, and all 
other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code. Second by Member 
Morgan. On call of the roll Members Tasa, Sobolik, Morgan, Stofferahn, Holtz, and 
Schneider voted aye. Absent and not voting: Members Gunkelman, Scherling, and 
Rosenberg. The motion was declared carried. 
 
Item 8: Metropolitan Park Second Addition 
Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Metropolitan Park Second Addition 
(Minor Subdivision) a replat of Lot 1, Block 1, Metropolitan Park Addition, to the 
City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 4455 30th Avenue South) 
(JPR Investments, LLC/Nate Vollmuth): APPROVED 
Mr. Kress presented the staff report stating all approval criteria have been met and staff 
is recommending approval. 
 
Member Stofferahn moved the findings and recommendations of staff be accepted and 
approval be recommended to the City Commission of the proposed Subdivision Plat 
Metropolitan Park Second Addition as outlined within the staff report, as the proposal 
complies with the GO2030 Fargo Comprehensive Plan, the applicable growth plan, the 
Standards of Article 20-06 of the Land Development Code, and all other applicable 
requirements of the Land Development Code. Second by Member Sobolik. On call of 
the roll Members Sobolik, Stofferahn, Tasa, Holtz, Morgan, and Schneider voted aye. 
Absent and not voting: Members Gunkelman, Scherling, and Rosenberg. The motion 
was declared carried. 
 
Item 9: South Ridge First Addition 
9a. Hearing on an application requesting a Growth Plan Amendment on Lots 5 
and 6, Block 3, South Ridge First Addition. (Located at 2365 and 2445 65th 
Avenue South) (Fargo Investments, LLC): APPROVED 
 
9b. Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from MR-3, Multi-
Dwelling Residential to LC, Limited Commercial with a C-O, Conditional Overlay 
on Lots 5 and 6, Block 3, South Ridge First Addition. (Located at 2365 and 2445 
65th Avenue South) (Fargo Investments, LLC): APPROVED 
Mr. Kress presented the staff report stating all approval criteria have been met and staff 
is recommending approval. He noted additional information received was emailed to 
Board members, and that a virtual neighborhood meeting was held with no comments 
received. 
 
Applicant representative Blake Carlson spoke on behalf of the application. 
 
Member Sobolik moved the findings and recommendations of staff be accepted and 
approval be recommended to the City Commission of the proposed 1) Growth Plan 
Amendment, and 2) Zoning Change from MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential to LC, 



Planning Commission 
February 2, 2021  Page No. 6 
 
Limited Commercial with a C-O, Conditional Overlay as outlined within the staff report, 
as the proposal complies with the GO2030 Fargo Comprehensive Plan, the 2007 
Growth Plan, Section 20-0906.F (1-4), Section 20-0905.H (1-4) of the Land 
Development Code, and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development 
Code. Second by Member Stofferahn. On call of the roll Members Morgan, Holtz, 
Stofferahn, Tasa, Sobolik, and Schneider voted aye. Absent and not voting: Members 
Gunkelman, Scherling, and Rosenberg. The motion was declared carried. 
 
Item E: Other Items: 
Item 1: Review of proposed annexation of portions of Sections 3, 4, and 10, 
Township 138 North, Range 49 West: APPROVED 
Mr. Kress and Assistant Director of Planning and Development Mark Williams presented 
the staff report. 
 
Member Sobolik moved the Planning Commission find that the proposed annexation to 
be consistent with the 2007 Growth Plan as outlined within the staff report. Second by 
Member Stofferahn. All Members present voted aye and the motion was declared 
carried. 
 
Member Sobolik moved to adjourn the meeting. Second by Member Stofferahn. All 
Members present voted aye and the motion was declared carried. 
 
The time at adjournment was 3:55 p.m. 
 



3

7

5

4

8

9

0 0.750.375
MilesF

Agenda Items Map
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Agenda Items Number
3a & 3b -- 220 Addition
4a, 4b & 4c -- Brewhalla Addition
5a, 5b & 5c -- EOLA Addition
7 -- Rocking Horse East Second Addition
8 -- Urban Plains by Brandt Fifth Addition 
9 -- Chas A. Roberts Addition 

Items 1 & 6 Continued 
Item 2 Withdrawn



Page 1 of 4 
 

Agenda Item # 3a & 3b 
 

City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: 220 Addition Date: 2/23/2021 
Location: 214 & 220 6th Avenue North Staff Contact: Maggie Squyer 
Legal Description: Lot 8 and Part of Lot 9, Block 31, Keeney and Devitts Second Addition 

Owner(s)/Applicant: River City Holdings Fund, LLC/ 
James Pladson Engineer: Mead & Hunt  

Entitlements Requested: 
Zoning Map Amendment (from MR-3. Multi-Dwelling Residential to DMU, Downtown 
Mixed-Use) and Minor Subdivision (A replat of Lot 8 and part of Lot 9, Block 31, 
Keeney and Devitts Second Addition to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota)  

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing: March 2, 2021 
 
Existing  Proposed 
Land Use: Household Living  Land Use: Household Living 
Zoning: MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential  Zoning: DMU, Downtown Mixed-Use 
Uses Allowed: Multi-Dwelling Residential allows 
detached housing, attached housing, duplexes, multi-
dwelling structures, group living, group living restricted 
residency, community service, day care facilities of 
limited size, parks and open areas, religious 
institutions, safety services, schools, basic utilities, and 
limited telecommunications facilities.  
 

 Uses Allowed: Downtown-Mixed Use allows 
detached housing, attached housing, duplexes, multi-
dwelling structures, colleges, community service, day 
care facilities, health care facilities, parks and open 
areas, religious institutions, safety services, basic 
utilities, offices, commercial parking, retail sales and 
services, self-service storage, vehicle repair, limited 
vehicle service and telecommunications facilities of 
limited size.  
 

Maximum Density: 24 units per acre  Maximum Density: No limit  
 
Proposal: 
The applicant is seeking approval of 1) a Zoning Map Amendment and 2) a Minor Subdivision entitled 220 
Addition. The request is to replat the two existing lots into one lot that will be zoned DMU, Downtown Mixed-Use. 
 
This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 
Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. 
 
Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts: 

• North: MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential, with a duplex and detached house 
• East: MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential, with a detached house 
• South: DMU, Downtown Mixed-Use, with a commercial parking lot 
• West: MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential, with an apartment complex 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Continued on next page. 



Page 2 of 4 
 

Area Plans: 
 
The subject is designated ‘residential’ in the 2018 
Downtown InFocus Plan.  
 
 

 

 

 

Schools and Parks: 
Schools: The subject property is located within the Fargo School District and is served by Roosevelt Elementary, 
Ben Franklin Middle and North High schools. 
 
Neighborhood: The subject property is located in the Downtown Neighborhood. 
 
Parks: The subject property is located within a quarter of a mile from Wildflower Grove Park (9 Lower Terrace 
North) and Riverside/Civic Gardens which offer recreational trails and gardens.  
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: The subject property is not connected to bike facilities, but a shared use path is located on 
the west side of 2nd Street North, near the subject property.  
 
Staff Analysis: 
Zoning  
Section 20-906. F (1-4) of the LDC stipulates the following criteria be met before a zone change can be approved: 
 

1. Is the requested zoning change justified by a change in conditions since the previous zoning 
classification was established or by an error in the zoning map?  
Staff is unaware of any zoning map error in regards to the subject property. The property owner is 
interested in removing the existing structures and building an apartment complex on the proposed lot. The 
Downtown Mixed-Use zoning was requested to maximize the size of the proposed building and the number 
of dwelling units allowed on the subject property. DMU zoning has no maximum density requirement per 
acre. Staff finds that the requested zone change is justified due to the subject property’s proximity to the 
Downtown core and existing DMU-zoned lots. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

2. Are the City and other agencies able to provide the necessary public services, facilities, and 
programs to serve the development allowed by the new zoning classifications at the time the 
property is developed?  
The development is served with city services (water, sewer, streets, police/fire protection, etc.) as well as 
other utility services as needed. The City Engineer and other applicable review agencies have reviewed 
this proposal. City staff noted that, while the DMU zoning district offers flexible dimensional standards, 
other site constraints may influence development on the lot. These constraints may include existing 
easements and street trees. No deficiencies to provide the necessary public services, facilities and 
programs to this development have been identified. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 

Subject Property 



Page 3 of 4 
 

3. Will the approval of the zoning change adversely affect the condition or value of the property in the 
vicinity?  
Staff has no evidence that would suggest this proposal would adversely affect the condition or value of the 
property in the vicinity. Written notice of the proposal was sent to all property owners within 300 feet of the 
subject property. To date, staff has received one inquiry and no formal complaints in response to these 
notices. Staff finds that the approval will not adversely affect the condition or value of the property in the 
vicinity. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
4. Is the proposed amendment consistent with the purpose of this LDC, the Growth Plan, and other 

adopted policies of the City?   
The purpose of the LDC is to implement Fargo’s Comprehensive Plan in a way that will protect the general 
health, safety, and welfare of the citizens. The first goal of the Downtown InFocus plan (Grow as a 
Neighborhood) supports investing in housing to increase the population living downtown. Rezoning the 
subject property to DMU provides the opportunity for higher-density housing than what is allowed by right in 
the MR-3 zoning district. Staff finds that the proposal is consistent with the purposes of the LDC, the 
Growth Plan, and other adopted policies of the City. (Criteria Satisfied)  

 
Subdivision  
The LDC stipulates that the following criteria be met before a minor plat can be approved: 
 

1. Section 20-0907.B.3 of the LDC stipulates that the Planning Commission recommend approval or 
denial of the application, based on whether it complies with the adopted Area Plan, the standards of 
Article 20-06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code.  Section 20-
0907.B.4 of the LDC further stipulates that a Minor Subdivision Plat shall not be approved unless it 
is located in a zoning district that allows the proposed development and complies with the adopted 
Area Plan, the standards of Article 20-06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land 
Development Code.  
The subject property is located in the Downtown neighborhood, which was recently evaluated through the 
creation of the Downtown InFocus plan. The proposed use is consistent with the existing and proposed 
zoning in the area. The proposed subdivision will replat two existing lots into one new lot. In accordance 
with Section 20-0901.F of the LDC, notices of the proposed plat have been sent out to property owners 
within 300 feet of the subject property. To date, staff has received one inquiry about the application and no 
formal complaints. Staff has reviewed this request and finds that this application complies with standards of 
Article 20-06, Downtown InFocus, and all applicable requirements of the Land Development Code.   
(Criteria Satisfied) 

 
2. Section 20-0907.C.4.f of the LDC stipulates that in taking action on a Final Plat, the Board of City 

Commissioners shall specify the terms for securing installation of public improvements to serve 
the subdivision.  
While this section of the LDC specifically addresses only major subdivision plats, staff believes it is 
important to note that any improvements associated with the project (both existing and proposed) are 
subject to special assessments. Special assessments associated with the costs of the public infrastructure 
improvements are proposed to be spread by the front footage basis and storm sewer by the square footage 
basis as is typical with the City of Fargo assessment principals. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 
Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and hereby recommend approval to the 
City Commission of the proposed 1) Zoning Map Amendment from MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential to DMU, 
Downtown Mixed-Use and 2) 220 Addition subdivision, as the proposal satisfactorily complies with Downtown 
InFocus, the Standards of Article 20-06, Section 20-0906(F) (1-4) of the LDC, and all other applicable requirements 
of the LDC.” 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: March 2, 2021 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

Attachments: 
1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
3. Preliminary Plat 
 



Subject Property

ALY N

2 ST N

4 ST N

3 ST N

4 AVE N

7 AVE N

8 AVE N

6 AVE N

1 ST N

BU
R

R
ELL C

T N

5 ST N

MILLS AVE N

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

February 2, 2021

Zone Change (MR-3 to DMU) & Plat (Minor)
220 Addition

200
Feet

214 & 220 6th Ave N

Legend
SR-2
SR-3
SR-4SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMU
GI

AGDMUGC
GO

LC

MR-2MR-3

LIMR-1
City Limits



Subject Property

ALY N

2 ST N

4 ST N

3 ST N

4 AVE N

7 AVE N

8 AVE N

6 AVE N

1 ST N

BU
R

R
ELL C

T N

5 ST N

MILLS AVE N

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

February 2, 2021

Zone Change (MR-3 to DMU) & Plat (Minor)
220 Addition

200
Feet

214 & 220 6th Ave N





Item # 4a, 4b & 4c 
 

City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: Brewhalla Addition 
Date: 
Update: 

1/26/2021 
2/24/2021 

Location: 
1612, 1620, 1624, 1630, 1632, 1666, 
1702 1st Avenue North  Staff Contact: Maegin Elshaug 

Owner(s)/Applicant: MBA Investments, LLC  Engineer: Moore Engineering, Inc 

Reason for Request: 

Minor Subdivision (replat of Blocks 26 and 27, the vacated “L” Street (16 ½ Street North), 
the West 25 feet of vacated West Street (16th Street North), and part of the vacated 
Northern Pacific Avenue, Reeves Addition; replat of part of Lot 5, Milwaukee Addition; plat of 
Auditor’s Lot No. 1 of the South Half of Section 1, Township 139 North, Range 49 West; and 
a plat of an unplatted part of the South Half of said Section 1, to the City of Fargo, Cass 
County, North Dakota); Zoning Change (from LI, Limited Commercial, GC, General 
Commercial, and GC, General Commercial with a C-O, Conditional Overlay to GC, General 
Commercial with a Planned Unit Development (PUD) overlay); a PUD Master Land Use 
Plan; and a PUD Final Plan.     
(see note below for updated information on subdivision and zoning) 

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing: March 2, 2021 
 
 
Existing  Proposed 
Land Use: Commercial, Residential, and Industrial  Land Use: unchanged  
Zoning: LI, Limited Industrial; GC, General Commercial   Zoning: GC, General Commercial with a PUD 
Uses Allowed:  
LI – Limited Industrial.  Allows colleges, community service, 
daycare centers of unlimited size, detention facilities, health 
care facilities, parks and open space, religious institutions, 
safety services, adult entertainment centers, offices, off-
premise advertising, commercial parking, outdoor recreation 
and entertainment, retail sales and service, self storage, 
vehicle repair, limited vehicle service, industrial service, 
manufacturing and production, warehouse and freight 
movement, wholesale sales, aviation, surface transportation. 

GC – General Commercial.  Allows colleges, community 
service, daycare centers of unlimited size, detention facilities, 
health care facilities, parks and open space, religious 
institutions, safety services, adult entertainment centers, 
offices, off-premise advertising, commercial parking, outdoor 
recreation and entertainment, retail sales and service, self-
storage, vehicle repair, limited vehicle service, aviation, surface 
transportation, and major entertainment events. 

Plus a CUP allowing Residential and Industrial Uses; and a 
CUP for an alternative access plan for parking reduction. 

 Uses Allowed: 
GC – General Commercial.  Allows colleges, 
community service, daycare centers of unlimited 
size, detention facilities, health care facilities, 
parks and open space, religious institutions, 
safety services, adult entertainment centers, 
offices, off-premise advertising, commercial 
parking, outdoor recreation and entertainment, 
retail sales and service, self-storage, vehicle 
repair, limited vehicle service, aviation, surface 
transportation, major entertainment events, and 
portable signs.   

Plus a PUD allowing Residential and Industrial 
uses 

Maximum Density Allowed:  
LI & GC: 85% building coverage 
CUP: allows 1 residential unit  

 Maximum Density Allowed:  
GC: 85% building coverage (unchanged) 
PUD: allow 7 units per acre (up to 47 units) 



Proposal: 
 
The applicant is seeking approval of 1) a minor subdivision (one block, two lots); 2) a zoning change from LI, Limited 
Industrial and GC, General Commercial to GC, General Commercial with a Planned Unit Development Overlay (PUD) 
(see zoning note below); 3) a PUD Master Land Use Plan; and 4) a PUD Final Plan. The subject property is located 
at 1612, 1620, 1624, 1630, 1632, 1666, 1702 1st Avenue North and contains approximately 6.74 acres. The applicant 
intends for a new multi-use building to be built on the western portion of the property. 
 
This application was continued from the February 2, 2021 Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Note:  
Subdivision: The property located at 1612 1st Avenue North was included on the agenda, hearing notice and property 
owner letters. This property is leased by the applicant. Staff suggested the applicant include this property on the replat, 
however, the applicant does not intend to. Therefore, the property at 1612 1st Avenue North (a portion of land in the 
South Half of said Section 1 as noted above) is not included in the subdivision application. See below image for 
clarification.  
 
Zoning: Though the agenda, hearing notice and property owner letters note there is a conditional overlay associated 
with the existing GC zoning, there is, in fact, not a conditional overlay on this property. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background Information 
In June 2018, the Planning Commission approved residential (one unit) and industrial uses in the GC, General 
Commercial zoning (CUP 2018-007 and recorded Cass County document number 1541641). In July 2018, the 
Planning Commission approved an alternative access plan for a parking reduction (CUP 2018-009 and recorded Cass 
County document number 1542377). Both of the CUPs included the property at 1620, 1624, 1630, 1632 and 1666 1st 
Avenue North and both were approved with conditions. Also in 2018, a variance was approved that allowed the 
placement of the structure in the southeast corner of the site closer to the property lines than what would normally be 
permitted. It is intended that the CUPs and variance will no longer be necessary if the Zoning and PUD Master Land 
Use Plan and Final Plan are approved, as the PUD would address those items. 
 
Project Summary 
The applicant has applied for a minor subdivision, zoning change and a PUD Overlay in order to tailor development 
standards to the specifics of the proposed project, Brewhalla Market, which will be a new mixed-use building on the 
west portion of the subject property. According to the applicant, the Brewhalla Market project is proposed to create a 



new 4-story (with lower level) mixed use facility with underground parking, two stories of food market, retail, and multi-
use event space, third floor lodging units (24 rooms), and fourth floor apartments (three 2-bedroom units and fifteen 1-
bedroom units – total of 18 units); along with an on-grade corridor connecting the Brewhalla Market project to the 
Drekker Brewery space (building in the center and south part of the subject property). The applicant would like to have 
flexibility for the lodging units be developed as residential units; the PUD Overlay section notes the proposed density 
and units to accommodate this. Due to the complexities of the site and shared parking, the PUD will include the whole 
property. Existing structures and land uses located on the eastern portion of the project (Lot 2 / the Railyard) are not 
expected to change with this project. There are several existing structures on the east and south sides that do not meet 
setback requirements, which the PUD will accommodate. The applicant has submitted a project narrative, PUD Master 
Land Use Plan and Final Plan which further describes the proposed development. These documents are attached. 
 
Minor Subdivision 
In order to accommodate development of the new multi-use building, the applicant has applied for a subdivision to 
create two (2) lots and one (1) block for the subject property. Based on future ownership of the development, the 
proposed lot line divides the development. However, the structures on either side of the lot line will be connected 
through a corridor, which results in a zero lot line.  
 
PUD Master Land Use Plan 
The image to the right is a preliminary 
Master Land Use Plan submitted by the 
applicant. All structures are existing except 
for the Brewhalla Market, the proposed 
structure on the west. The Master Land Use 
Plan shows the building envelope of the 
structures, parking and circulation, and open 
space.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PUD Final Plan 
The purpose of the PUD Final Plan is to 
confirm that the final development plans 
are consistent with the intent and layout of 
the PUD master land use plan. The image 
on the left is the preliminary PUD Final 
Plan. The applicant will also need to submit 
for a building permit, where all review 
departments will review the plans for 
compliance with their respective codes.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Proposed Master Land Use Plan 

Proposed Final Plan 



PUD Overlay 
As permitted by Section 20-0301(E) of the LDC, a number of different zoning standards are eligible for modification by 
the ordinance which establishes the PUD zoning overlay. The proposed PUD overlay is intended to modify the 
following specific GC zoning standards: 
  

 Allow residential and industrial use; 
 Establish residential density of a maximum of 7 units per acre (allows up to 47 units);  
 Reduce the interior side setback to 0 feet (on shared lot line of the proposed Lots 1 and 2 of the subdivision); 
 Reduce setback on east interior setback to 2 feet and south rear setback to 0 feet to accommodate existing 

non-confirming structures; 
 Reduce parking lot perimeter landscaping buffer width to minimum 4 feet;  
 Modify the minimum off-street parking requirements for a mixed-use development. 

 
In addition to these modifications, the PUD overlay will establish additional design standards for the development, 
which are largely consistent with the conditions of the existing CUPs 2018-007 and 2018-009. The design standards 
can be found in the attached draft PUD Ordinance, and are summarized below: 
 

 Prohibited uses 
 Bicycle parking  
 Pedestrian circulation 
 Minimum open space requirement  
 Restrictions related to the manufacturing use   

 
Parking Information 
The applicant has prepared a parking proposal, which was reviewed by the City’s traffic engineer. The traffic engineer 
concurred with the proposal. The applicant has proposed to keep the existing parking ratios on the east lot (Lot 2 / the 
Railyard), which were approved through CUP 2018-009. The parking requirements are to provide: 
 

 Two spaces for the one residential unit on site 
 One space per 500 square feet for all other uses  

 
The applicant has proposed the following ratios for the west lot (Lot 1 / Brewhalla):  
 

 1.5 space per residential unit 
 One space per 250 square feet for conference and event spaces, food market and patios 
 One space per 500 square feet for kitchen and ancillary space  
 All other uses will be per the Land Development Code.  

 
Though the two lots have different parking ratios, the parking is intended to be shared between the two lots.  
 
 
This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire Departments 

(“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. The applicant will also need to submit for a building permit, 
where all review departments will review the plans for compliance with their respective codes. 
 
The Fire Department noted the following comments on the applications: 

 Consideration should be given to risk associated with mainline railroad tracks and residential units located in 
close proximity. On this site, adjustments could be made to move residential units away from the track.  The 
parking lot could possibly provide buffer between building and tracks.    

 
The Inspections Department noted the following comments on the applications: 

 There appear to be buildings crossing property lines which is not allowed per building code. 



 There appears to be buildings that are too close to property lines. If property lines are installed near existing 
buildings, they may be not compliant with the building code. They can be reconstructed to comply.  

 Any building, construction or work on or near railroad property will need approval from the railroad Owner and 
will require easement agreements if approved. Statements and easement agreements must be provided prior 
to approving any permits and work on the property. These easements must be in the Inspections Departments 
hands prior to permit and signed by all parties involved. 

 The comments on this review are for purposes of preliminary review for the building code only and new 
information must be provided during the application, plan review and permit process that indicate full 
compliance with all codes and ordinances. The Inspections Department will approve for the PUD and expect 
all issues will be resolved prior to any permit application submittal. 
 

While the comments from the Inspections Department are included in the staff report, they don’t specifically relate to or 
impact the PUD application; the comments refer more to the design and permitting process and items that will have to 
be addressed during the building permit review phase.  
 
 
Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts: 

 North: Across 1st Avenue North is LI, Limited Industrial and GC, General Commercial with warehouse and 
office uses; 

 East: LI, Light Industrial with warehouse and office uses; 
 South: GC, General Commercial with the BNSF Railroad; 
 West: LI, Limited Industrial with warehouse and office uses. 

 
Area Plans: 
 
The subject property is located within the boundaries of the Core Neighborhoods Plan, which is in process and in its 
final stages of development and review.   
 
Context: 
 
Neighborhood: Madison / Unicorn Park  
 
Schools: The subject property is located within the Fargo School District and is served by Roosevelt Elementary, Ben 
Franklin Middle, and Fargo North High schools. 
 
Parks: Unicorn Park (1603 3 Avenue North) is located approximately 800 feet north of the subject property.  Unicorn 
Park provides basketball, grill, multipurpose field, playground, and picnic table amenities.    
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: There is an on-road bike facility located north of the property on 1 Avenue North. This bike route 
is a component of the metro area bikeways system. 
 
Staff Analysis: 
 
Minor Subdivision 
The LDC stipulates that the following criteria is met before a minor plat can be approved: 
 

1. Section 20-0907.B.3 of the LDC stipulates that the Planning Commission recommend approval or 
denial of the application, based on whether it complies with the adopted Area Plan, the standards of 
Article 20-06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code.  Section 20-
0907.B.4 of the LDC further stipulates that a Minor Subdivision Plat shall not be approved unless it is 
located in a zoning district that allows the proposed development and complies with the adopted Area 
Plan, the standards of Article 20-06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development 
Code.  
The subdivision is intended to plat the subject property into two lots to accommodate future redevelopment. In 



accordance with Section 20-0901.F of the LDC, notices of the proposed plat have been sent out to property 
owners within 300 feet of the subject property. To date, Planning staff has received one letter of support for the 
project. Staff has reviewed this request and finds that this application complies with standards of Article 20-06 
and all applicable requirements of the Land Development Code. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
2. Section 20-907.C.4.f of the LDC stipulates that in taking action on a Final Plat, the Board of City 

Commissioners shall specify the terms for securing installation of public improvements to serve the 
subdivision.   
While this section of the LDC specifically addresses only major subdivision plats, staff believes it is important 
to note that any improvements associated with the project (both existing and proposed) are subject to special 
assessments. Special assessments associated with the costs of the public infrastructure improvements are 
proposed to be spread by the front footage basis and storm sewer by the square footage basis as is typical 
with the City of Fargo assessment principles. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

Zoning  
Section 20-906. F (1-4) of the LDC stipulates the following criteria be met before a zone change can be approved: 
 

1. Is the requested zoning change justified by a change in conditions since the previous zoning 
classification was established or by an error in the zoning map?  
Staff is unaware of any error in the zoning map as it relates to this property. Staff finds that the requested 
zoning change is justified by change in conditions since the previous zoning classification was established. 
The PUD zoning is an overlay with an underlying zoning district of GC, General Commercial. The proposed 
PUD Overlay zoning district is intended to accommodate the development of this property and specifically 
identify the proposed development with a specific master land use plan that is to be reviewed concurrently with 
the zoning change request. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

2. Are the City and other agencies able to provide the necessary public services, facilities, and programs 
to serve the development allowed by the new zoning classifications at the time the property is 
developed?  
City staff and other applicable review agencies have reviewed this proposal. Staff finds no deficiencies in the 
ability to provide all of the necessary services to the site. The subject property is adjacent to existing 
developed public rights-of-way, which provide access and public utilities to serve the property. 
(Criteria Satisfied) 

 
3. Will the approval of the zoning change adversely affect the condition or value of the property in the 

vicinity?  
Staff has no documentation or supporting evidence to suggest that the approval of this zoning change would 
adversely affect the condition or value of the property in the vicinity. In accordance with the notification 
requirements of the Land Development Code, notice was provided to neighboring property owners within 300 
feet of the project site. To date, staff has received one letter of support. Staff finds that the proposal will not 
adversely affect the condition or value of the property in the vicinity. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
4. Is the proposed amendment consistent with the purpose of this LDC, the Growth Plan, and other 

adopted policies of the City?   
The purpose of the LDC is to implement Fargo’s Comprehensive Plan in a way that will protect the general 
health, safety, and welfare of the citizens. Staff finds that the proposed PUD is in keeping with Fargo’s 
Comprehensive Plan, specifically:  
(from Go2030 Chapter 10—Neighborhoods, Infill, and New Development)  
 Infill—Develop policies to promote infill and density within areas that are already developed and are 

protected by a flood resiliency strategy. Control sprawl and focus on areas outside of the floodplain.  
 Design Standards—Continue to follow design guidelines for Growth Areas for infill and residential 

development. Improve quality new housing by fostering strong relationship with the development and 
building community to promote dense, walkable communities with neighborhood centers.  

 Quality New Development—Require new development to meet site design standards that result in well-
designed new neighborhoods.  



 
Staff finds that the proposed development is consistent with the purpose of the LDC, the Go2030 
Comprehensive Plan, and other adopted policies of the City.  (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
Master Land Use Plan 
The LDC stipulates that the Planning Commission and Board of City Commissioners shall consider the following 
criteria in the review of any Master Land Use Plan: 
 

1. The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict 
application of otherwise applicable base zoning district standards, based on the purpose and intent of 
this Land Development Code; 
The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict application of the 
base GC zoning district. This PUD is intended to promote a mixed-use development pattern by providing 
flexibility in terms of residential use and density, industrial use, parking requirements, setbacks and 
landscaping requirements while establishing design standards, in order to provide a larger scale development 
with residential use. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

2. The PUD Master Land Use Plan complies with the PUD standards of Section 20-0302; 
All standards and requirements as set forth in the LDC have been met. (Criteria Satisfied)  
 

3. The City and other agencies will be able to provide necessary public services, facilities, and programs 
to serve the development proposed, at the time the property is developed; 
City staff and other applicable review agencies have reviewed this proposal. Staff finds no deficiencies in the 
ability to provide all of the necessary services to the site. The subject property fronts on existing developed 
public rights-of-way, which provide access and public utilities to serve the property. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

4. The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and objectives contained in 
the Area Plan, Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policy documents; 
The purpose of the LDC is to implement Fargo’s Comprehensive Plan in a way that will protect the general 
health, safety, and welfare of the citizens. Staff finds that the proposed PUD is in keeping with Fargo’s 
Comprehensive Plan, including initiatives of infill, design standards, and quality new development. The City’s 
Go2030 Comprehensive Plan supports development within areas that are already serviced with utilities. Staff 
finds this proposal is consistent with the purpose of the LDC, the Go2030 Comprehensive Plan and other 
adopted policies of the City. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
5. The PUD Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the development will 

promote the general welfare of the community. 
The PUD is consistent with sound planning practice and the development will promote the general welfare of 
the community by providing a mixed-use development that will allow for a variety of uses within an area of the 
City that already has access to City services. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
PUD Final Plan Section 20-0908.D: The LDC stipulates that the Planning Commission shall approve the PUD Final 
plan if it is determined to be in substantial compliance with the approved PUD Master Land Use Plan. The PUD Final 
Plan shall be deemed to be in compliance so long as, when compared with the PUD Master Land Use Plan, it does not 
result in: 
 

1. An increase in project density or intensity, including the number of housing units per acre or the 
amount of nonresidential floor area per acre; 
There has been no change in project density or intensity. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

2. A change in the mix of housing types or the amount of land area devoted to nonresidential uses; 
There has been no change in the mix of housing types or the amount of land devoted to nonresidential uses.   
(Criteria Satisfied)   
 

3. A reduction in the amount of open space; 
Open space has remained unchanged.  (Criteria Satisfied) 



 
4. Any change to the vehicular system that results in a significant change in the amount or location of 

streets, common parking areas, and access to the PUD; 
Staff finds the change in common parking areas and reduction of access points do not constitute a significant 
change. (Criteria Satisfied)  
 

5. Any change within 50 feet of any SR or MR zoning district; 
There has been no change within 50 feet of any SR or MR zoning district. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

6. Any change determined by the Planning Commission to represent an increase in development 
intensity; 
There has been no increase in development intensity. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

7. A substantial change in the layout of buildings.  
There has been no substantial change in the layout of the buildings. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
The decision making body for the PUD Final Plan is the Planning Commission. Below includes a recommendation 
contingent on City Commission approval of the Zoning Change and PUD Master Land.  

 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 
Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and hereby recommend approval to the City 
Commission of the proposed:  1) Subdivision Plat, Brewhalla Addition; 2) Zoning Change from LI, Limited Industrial 
and GC, Limited Commercial to GC, General Commercial with a PUD, Planned Unit Development Overlay; and 3) 
PUD Master Land Use Plan;  
 
and to hereby approve the PUD Final Plan, contingent on the City Commission approval of the Zoning Change and 
PUD Master Land Use Plan,  
 
as the proposal complies with the Co2030 Fargo Comprehensive Plan, Article 20-06, Section 20-0906.F(1-4), and 
Section 20-0908.B(7) of the LDC, and all other applicable requirements of the LDC.” 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: March 2, 2021 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
3. Preliminary Plat 
4. Project narrative from applicant 
5. PUD Master Land Use Plan and Final Plan 
6. Draft PUD Ordinance  
7. Public Comment 
 



Subject Property

21
 S

T 
S

3 AVE N

1 AVE N

3 AVE S

20 S
T N

15 S
T N

2 AVE S

1 AVE S

MAIN AVE

15 S
T S

16 S
T S

18 S
T S

16 S
T N

17 S
T S

15
 1

/2
 S

T 
N

14
 1

/2
 S

T 
N

2 AVE N

ALY N

4 AVE N
19

 S
T 

N

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Zone Change (LI, GC, and GC with a C-O, Conditional Overlay to 
GC with a Planned Unit Development [PUD] Overlay, repealing the C-O); 

PUD Master Plan and Final Plan; & Plat (Minor)Brewhalla Addition

300
Feet

1612, 1620, 1624, 1630, 1632, 1666, & 1702 1st Ave N

Legend
SR-2
SR-3SR-4SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMUGI

AGDMUGC
GO

LC

MR-2MR-3

LIMR-1
City Limits



Subject Property

21
 S

T 
S

3 AVE N

1 AVE N

3 AVE S

20 S
T N

15 S
T N

2 AVE S

1 AVE S

MAIN AVE

15 S
T S

16 S
T S

18 S
T S

16 S
T N

17 S
T S

15
 1

/2
 S

T 
N

14
 1

/2
 S

T 
N

2 AVE N

ALY N

4 AVE N
19

 S
T 

N

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Zone Change (LI, GC, and GC with a C-O, Conditional Overlay to 
GC with a Planned Unit Development [PUD] Overlay, repealing the C-O); 

PUD Master Plan and Final Plan; & Plat (Minor)
Brewhalla Addition

300
Feet

1612, 1620, 1624, 1630, 1632, 1666, & 1702 1st Ave N



Scale in Feet

0 60



 






















T






















Fax: 701-235-5435Phone: 701-235-5563

Fargo, North Dakota

PUD MASTER PLAN



1ST AVE N

BNSF RAILWAY

F.F. 907.24
BSMT 896.74

DUMPSTER
LOCATION

PROVIDE 52LF DROP CURB
SECTION W/ 6' FLARES

DUMPSTER
LOCATION

1
5
@
9
.
0
'
=
1
3
5
.
0
'

1
3
@
9
.
0
'
=
1
1
7
.
0
'

1
4
@
9
.
0
'
=
1
2
6
.
0
'

1
4
@
9
.
0
'
=
1
2
6
.
0
'

1
5
@
9
.
0
'
=
1
3
5
.
0
'

1
5
@
9
.
0
'
=
1
3
5
.
0
'

1
6
@
9
.
0
'
=
1
4
4
.
0
'

1
5
@
9
.
0
'
=
1
3
5
.
0
'

7
.
5
'

9@9.0'=81.0' 2@9.0' 20.0' 9.0'

22.2'

18.0'27.0'18.0'18.0'27.0'18.0'18.0'27.0'18.0'18.0'18.0'

16@9.0'=
144.0'

5.0'

5.0'
R5.0'

R8.0'

R6
.0
'

R5
.0
'

R1
2.
0'

1
1
.
0
'

R1
0.
0'

R5.0'

R10.0'R3.0'

R3
.0
'

R3.0'

R3.5'

5.5'

R1
0.
5'

F.F.
905.24

(4) STAIRS W/ 6"
RISE & 11" TREAD
(SEE STRUCTURAL)

ST

WW

DROP CURB
LAST 3'

18.0'

DROP CURB
LAST 3'

DROP CURB
LAST 3'

24.0'

24.0'

2
7
.
0
'

PROVIDE 6LF DROP CURB
SECTION W/ 6' FLARES

15.7'

1
8
.
0
'

11.0'

R55
.0'

R3
.0
'

SEE STRUCTURAL FOR
RAMP DETAILS

8.0'

33.5'

ST

ST
M

M M

R2.0'

ST

ST

ST

ST

WW

902.25

6'x6' REINFORCED
CONCRETE COLLAR (TYP.)

(BASE BID ONLY)

20@9.0'=
180.0'

18.0'

3.0'

2.8'

NEW SIGN
(SEE ARCH.
PLANS)

1
6
.
7
'

PATIO FOUNDATION
BY STRUCTURAL

ST

ST

PROVIDE 6LF DROP CURB
SECTION W/ 3' FLARES

902
901

900
899

898
897

896
895

R3.5'

ST

ST

ST

T
G

MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT
PAD (SEE MECH. PLANS)
ELEV. 906.25

TRANSFORMER & GENERATOR
PADS (SEE ELEC. PLANS)

ELEV. 906.50

2
7
.
0
'

WALKING PATH BY
LANDSCAPER

ROCK PATIO AREA
(BY LANDSCAPER)

6'x3' REINFORCED
CONCRETE COLLAR
(BASE BID ONLY)

2
4
.
8
'

5.0'

ACCESSIBLE
SIGN (TYP.)

STOP SIGN
(R1-1)

13.6' 13.6' 13.6'

PAINTED
DIRECTIONAL

ARROWS

REMOVE & REPLACE
PAVEMENT TO

NEAREST JOINT LINE

GABION WALL
(SHOWN FOR
REFERENCE)

4.4'

4
.
4
'

GABION WALL
(SHOWN FOR
REFERENCE)

S

S

ST

ST

10.0'

10.0'

BION WALL
SHOWN FOR
EFERENCE)

REINSTALL
SALVAGED SIGN

S

S

1
0
.
0
'

T

ST
ST




FINAL PLAN

Fax: 701-235-5435Phone: 701-235-5563

Fargo, North Dakota



 

 

DRAFT PUD ORDINANCE 

 

Allowed Uses: In addition to uses allowed within the GC, General Commercial zoning district, Residential 

and Industrial Uses shall also be allowed. 

Residential Density: The maximum residential density allowed shall be 7 units per acre. 

Parking:  

The following parking requirements will be used for Lot 1: 

 1.5 space per residential unit 

 One space per 250 square feet for conference and event spaces, food market and patios 

 One space per 500 square feet for kitchen and ancillary space  

 All other parking requirements will be per the Land Development Code.  
 

The following parking requirements will be used for Lot 2: 

 Two spaces for the one residential unit on site 

 One space per 500 square feet for all other uses  
 
Required parking for the development can be shared and located on either Lot 1 or 2.  
 

Setback: Reduce interior setback of shared lot line between Lots 1 and 2 to 0 feet. To accommodate 

existing structures on Lot 2: Reduce interior setback on east side to 2 feet and reduce rear setback to 0 

feet. 

Landscaping: Reduce parking lot perimeter landscaping buffer width to 4’. 

Additional Standards: 

1. The following uses are prohibited: 

a. Detention Facilities 

b. Adult Entertainment Center 

c. Vehicle Repair 

d. Limited Vehicle Services 

e. Aviation/Surface Transportation 

f. Off-Premise Advertising 

g. Portable Signs 

 

2. Bicycle parking facilities, such as bike racks or bike lockers shall be provided on site. 

 

3. Separate vehicular and pedestrian circulation systems shall be provided. An on-site system of 

pedestrian walkways shall be designed to provide direct access and connections to and between the 

following 

a. The primary entrance or entrances to each commercial building 

b. Parking areas that service such commercial buildings 



 

 

c. The public sidewalk or walkway within the 1st Avenue North right-of-way 

 

In locations where pedestrian walkways intersect or cross vehicular circulation areas, 

pavement striping or contrasting paving type shall be used along with signage and/or 

other design methods to demarcate the pedestrian circulation system. 

 

4. Open space shall be a minimum of 20% 

 

5. Off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation areas shall have an all-weather surface, as 

defined by the Land Development Code. 

 

6. The property shall not be used in whole or in part for storage or rubbish or debris of any kind 

whatsoever, nor for the storage of any property or items that will cause such lot to appear untidy, 

unclean, or unsightly as determined by the lot that will emit foul odors, including compost sites and 

fertilizer. All garbage containers, including dumpsters, shall be concealed from public view by a 

fence, screen wall, or building extension.  

 

7. The manufacturing, production, or processing of food and/or animal products shall not be 

permitted, except for brewing of beer. 

 

8. The manufacturing, production or processing of hazardous chemicals or materials shall not be 

permitted.  

 

9. No loading or unloading operations may be conducted between the hours of 10:00 PM and 6:00 

AM.  

 

 

 

 

 





Item # 5a, 5b & 5c 
 

City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: EOLA Addition Date: 2/24/2021 
Location: 2470 & 2500 45th St S Staff Contact: Maegin Elshaug 

Owner(s)/Applicant: 
EOLA Landholdings, LLC & City of 
Fargo / Epic Companies Engineer: Mead & Hunt 

Reason for Request: 

Major Subdivision (replat of Lot 4, Block 1, Anderson Park Second Addition to the City 
of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota, including a waiver for a reduced street Right of 
Way), Zoning Change (from GC, General Commercial with a C-O, Conditional Overlay 
to GC, General Commercial to a PUD, Planned Unit Development Overlay and a 
request to repeal the C-O, Conditional Overlay); and a PUD Master Land Use Plan 

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing: March 2, 2021 
 
 
Existing  Proposed 
Land Use: Vacant (previously sports complex)  Land Use: Mixed-use development  
Zoning: GC with a C-O, Conditional Overlay  Zoning: GC with PUD 
Uses Allowed: GC – General Commercial.  Allows 
colleges, community service, daycare centers of 
unlimited size, detention facilities, health care 
facilities, parks and open space, religious 
institutions, safety services, adult entertainment 
centers, offices, off-premise advertising, commercial 
parking, outdoor recreation and entertainment, retail 
sales and service, self-storage, vehicle repair, 
limited vehicle service, aviation, surface 
transportation, and major entertainment events.   

Plus CUP for TSS structure (location further east of 
subject property)  

 Uses Allowed: GC – General Commercial.  Allows 
colleges, community service, daycare centers of 
unlimited size, detention facilities, health care facilities, 
parks and open space, religious institutions, safety 
services, adult entertainment centers, offices, off-premise 
advertising, commercial parking, outdoor recreation and 
entertainment, retail sales and service, self-storage, 
vehicle repair, limited vehicle service, aviation, surface 
transportation, and major entertainment events.   

Plus a PUD allowing Residential use 
 

Maximum Density Allowed: 85% maximum 
building coverage 

 Maximum Density Allowed: building coverage 
unchanged  

 
 
Proposal: 
 
The applicant is seeking approval of 1) a major subdivision, EOLA Addition, (two (2) blocks, seven (7) lots), 
including a waiver for a reduced street Right of Way; 2) a zoning change from GC, General Commercial with a C-O, 
Conditional Overlay (Ordinance 4904), to GC, General Commercial with a Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
Overlay and a request to repeal the C-O, Conditional Overlay; and 3) a PUD Master Land Use Plan. The subject 
property is located at 2470 and 2500 45th Street South and contains approximately 6.74 acres. The property located 
at 2470 45th Street South is owned by the City of Fargo and is the location of the 24th Avenue South dedication on 
the proposed EOLA Addition plat. The applicant intends to build a master-planned mixed-use development. The 
image on the following page shows the area of the applications.  
 



 
 

Current Status:  
As of the writing of this staff report, staff continues to work with the applicant to confirm and solidify the details of 
the PUD. The Major Subdivision application including waiver for a reduced street Right of Way will include findings 
and a recommendation. However, in order to provide additional time to coordinate on this PUD project, staff is 
recommending continuation of the Zoning and PUD Master Land Use Plan applications. For the Zoning and PUD 
Master Plan, it is staff’s intent to present the applications at the March 2, 2021 Planning Commission meeting in 
order to introduce the project and to hear public comments, but to recommend continuation of the application to 
April 6, 2021 in order to give additional time to coordinate and finalize the details of the application. In summary, 
staff intends for the Zoning and PUD Master Land Use Plan applications to be heard by the Planning Commission 
twice; once on March 2 for information, discussion, and public hearing purposes, and again on April 6 for continued 
public hearing and recommendation from the Planning Commission. Staff has not included any findings for the 
Zoning and PUD Master Land Use Plan as there is no recommendation. 
 
Project Summary 
The applicant has applied for a major subdivision, zoning change and a PUD Overlay in order to tailor development 
standards to the specifics of the proposed project, the EOLA development, which is a new master-planned mixed-
use development surrounding a 4-acre urban park. The proposed project is eight 7-story buildings with underground 
parking, 1-2 floors of commercial space, with combination of residential condominiums and apartments, with patio 
spaces that open up to the park. A parking garage is also proposed on the site; however, if the parking structure 
was not constructed, the applicant proposes a similar mixed-use structure as the other eight. The applicant states 
that the development will be a walkable community that has trails connecting to the park, coordinated events with 
surrounding community organizations to naturally coexist with the surrounding amenities.  
 
Major Subdivision and waiver for a reduced street Right of Way 
In order to accommodate the development, the applicant has applied for a subdivision, EOLA Addition, to create 
two (2) blocks and seven (7) lots for the subject property. The subdivision will dedicate right-of-way for 24th Avenue 
South, which is anticipated to connect to 42nd Street South at some point in the future. The right-of-way for the road 
is narrower than required by the Land Development Code, therefore the application includes a request for waiver for 
a reduced street Right of Way. The Engineering Department is currently working with a consultant to design 24th 
Avenue South. The draft amenities plan is attached.   
 



PUD Master Land Use Plan 
The image to the right is a 
preliminary Master Land Use 
Plan submitted by the applicant. 
The applicant proposes eight 
mixed-use, 7-story buildings, 
parking structure and large 
public park. If the parking 
structure was not constructed, 
the applicant proposes a similar 
mixed-use structure as the 
other eight. The Master Land 
Use Plan shows the building 
envelope of the structures, 
parking and circulation, and 
open space. Note that if the 
zoning change and the Master 
Land Use Plan are approved by 
the City Commission, the 
Planning Commission will 
review the Final Plans for the 
PUD at some point in the 
future. 
 
PUD Overlay 
As permitted by Section 20-0301(E) of the LDC, a number of different zoning standards are eligible for modification 
by the ordinance which establishes the PUD zoning overlay. The proposed PUD overlay is intended to modify the 
following specific GC zoning standards: 
 

 Allow residential use; 
 Establish maximum residential density of 70 units per acre;  
 Increase building height within proximity of residentially zoned property and establish building height 

maximum on property to 85 feet; 
 Reduce front, street side, and rear setbacks to 10 feet; 
 Waive requirement for parking lot buffer; 
 Modify the minimum off-street parking requirements for a mixed-use development. 

 
In lieu of a parking lot buffer, the applicant is working on a proposal for plantings within the boulevard of 45th Street 
South, similar to the plantings to the south along 45th Street South. In addition to the modifications noted, the PUD 
overlay would also establish additional standards for the development, anticipated to be largely consistent with the 
C-O, Conditional Overlay. The applicant is preparing a study for how parking will be addressed within the 
development.  
 
This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 

Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. The applicant will also need to submit for a 

building permit, where all review departments will review the plans for compliance with their respective codes. 
 
Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts: 

 North: GC, General Commercial and P/I, Public and Institutional, with uses of commercial and the Fargo 
Park District’s Southwest Youth Ice Area; 

 East: P/I and the remainder of the Anderson Softball Complex; 
 South: LC, Limited Commercial and MR-2, Multi-Dwelling Residential with uses of commercial and 

apartments; 
 West: Across 45th Street South is GC with commercial use.  

 

Preliminary Master Land Use Plan 



Area Plans: 
The subject property is located 
within an area identified as the 
2003 Southwest Area Plan as 
contained within the Growth  
Plan for the Urban Fringe and 
Extraterritorial Area of the City 
of Fargo. The property was 
rezoned to GC, General 
Commercial with a C-O, 
Conditional Overlay in 2014. 
While this plan indicates the 
property for park/open space, a 
growth plan amendment was 
contemplated at the time and 
was ultimately concluded that, 
due to the general land use 
pattern of the area, not 
necessary. The base zoning 
district of GC is not changing 
with this application.  
 
 
Context:  
 
Neighborhood: Anderson  
 
Schools: The subject property is located within the West Fargo School District, specifically within the Freedom 
Elementary, Liberty Middle and Sheyenne High schools.  
 
Parks: The subject property is located adjacent to the remainder of the Anderson Softball Complex.  
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: A shared use facility is located on the east side of 45th Street South and connects to the 
metro area trail system.  
 
Staff Analysis: 
 
 
Subdivision  
The LDC stipulates that the following criteria is met before a major plat can be approved: 

1. Section 20-0907 of the LDC stipulates that no major subdivision plat application will be accepted for 
land that is not consistent with an approved Growth Plan or zoned to accommodate the proposed 
development.    
The property is zoned GC, General Commercial with a C-O, Conditional Overlay. The GC zoning is 
proposed to remain as the base zoning district for the PUD, while the C-O is proposed to be repealed. PUD 
overlay will establish additional standards for the development, anticipated to be largely consistent with the 
C-O, Conditional Overlay that will be repealed. The GC with PUD overlay zoning will accommodate the 
proposed development. In accordance with Section 20-0901.F of the LDC, notices of the proposed plat 
have been sent out to property owners within 300 feet of the subject property. To date, staff has not 
received any public comment or inquiries. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

2. Section 20-0907.4 of the LDC further stipulates that the Planning Commission shall recommend 
approval or denial of the application and the City Commission shall act to approve or deny, based 
on whether it is located in a zoning district that allows the proposed development, complies with 

Area of subject property 



the adopted Area Plan, the standards of Article 20-06 and all other applicable requirements of the 
Land Development Code.   
The property is zoned GC, General Commercial with a C-O, Conditional Overlay. The GC zoning is 
proposed to remain as the base zoning district for the PUD, while the C-O is proposed to be repealed. PUD 
overlay will establish additional standards for the development, anticipated to be largely consistent with the 
C-O, Conditional Overlay that will be repealed. The GC with PUD overlay zoning will accommodate the 
proposed development. In accordance with Section 20-0901.F of the LDC, notices of the proposed plat 
have been sent out to property owners within 300 feet of the subject property. To date, staff has not 
received any public comment or inquiries. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
3. Section 20-907.C.4.f of the LDC stipulates that in taking action on a Final Plat, the Board of City 

Commissioners shall specify the terms for securing installation of public improvements to serve 
the subdivision.  
There are existing utilities located within the property, running east and west, which will be removed or 
rerouted. Specifically, storm sewer will be rerouted and located within the new 24th Avenue South right-of-
way; the water main that exists through the lot, which comes from 42nd Street South, will be removed and 
capped at the eastern edge of the property and a new water main will be located in the 24th Avenue South 
right-of-way; and the sanitary sewer will be removed and capped at the eastern edge of the property and 
new sanitary sewer will be located within 24th Avenue South right-of-way. Some existing utility stubs are 
located on the west part of the property and are anticipated to remain. Additionally, the City’s standard 

policy is that any improvements associated with the project (both existing and proposed) are subject to 
special assessments. Special assessments associated with the costs of the public infrastructure 
improvements are proposed to be spread by the front footage basis and storm sewer by the square footage 
basis as is typical with the City of Fargo assessment principles. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 

Subdivision Waiver For Street Width 
This project requires a subdivision waiver for streets for right of way width as the 24th Avenue South 
roadway will reduced in overall right of way width, paving width, and boulevard configuration.  

 
1. Section 20-0907.D.3.a of the LDC stipulates that a Subdivision Waiver must not be detrimental to 

the public safety, health, or welfare or injurious to other property or improvements in the area in 
which the property is located. 
Twenty-fourth (24th) Avenue South will be a local street with diagonal parking on either side within a GC, 
General Commercial zoned area. LDC 20-0611(G)(1) specifies an 80-foot wide ROW. The standards 
between the required and proposed ROW are depicted in the chart below: 
 

STANDARD LDC PROPOSED 
Overall width 80 feet 73 feet 
Lanes 2 2 
Paving width 40 feet 32 feet 
Sidewalk width 4.5 feet each side 6 feet each side (and 4’ furnishing zone) 
Sidewalk location  2.0 feet off property line Just outside the ROW within Utility and 

Sidewalk easement 
 
The reduced right-of-way width provides sufficient east-west street connectivity and parking while 
accommodating the mixed-use development. Staff finds this criteria is met. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

2. Section 20-0901.D.3.b of the LDC stipulates that a Subdivision Waiver must represent the least 
deviation from this Land Development Code that will mitigate the hardship or practical difficulty 
that exists on the subject property. 
Approval of the subdivision waiver for ROW width, as described above, would allow the applicant’s project 
design for a mixed-use development while still providing sufficient right-of-way and connectivity to provide 



access and on-street diagonal parking on both sides of the street, as well as pedestrian circulation on 
dedicated public sidewalks. The Public Works department is working with the applicant on a maintenance 
agreement to address public improvements, maintenance, and snow removal.  (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
3. Section 20-0907.D.3.c of the LDC stipulates that a Subdivision Waiver shall not have the effect of 

waiving any provisions of this development code other than the Subdivision Design and 
Improvement Standards of Article 20-06. 
Only the street standards requirement of Section 20-0611 of the LDC would be affected by approval of this 
waiver. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

Zoning  
Section 20-906. F (1-4) of the LDC stipulates the following criteria be met before a zone change can be approved: 
 

1. Is the requested zoning change justified by a change in conditions since the previous zoning 
classification was established or by an error in the zoning map?  
 

2. Are the City and other agencies able to provide the necessary public services, facilities, and 
programs to serve the development allowed by the new zoning classifications at the time the 
property is developed?  

 
3. Will the approval of the zoning change adversely affect the condition or value of the property in the 

vicinity?  
 

4. Is the proposed amendment consistent with the purpose of this LDC, the Growth Plan, and other 
adopted policies of the City?   
 

Master Land Use Plan 
The LDC stipulates that the Planning Commission and Board of City Commissioners shall consider the following 
criteria in the review of any Master Land Use Plan: 
 

1. The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict 
application of otherwise applicable base zoning district standards, based on the purpose and intent 
of this Land Development Code; 
 

2. The PUD Master Land Use Plan complies with the PUD standards of Section 20-0302; 
 

3. The City and other agencies will be able to provide necessary public services, facilities, and 
programs to serve the development proposed, at the time the property is developed; 
 

4. The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and objectives contained in 
the Area Plan, Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policy documents; 

 
5. The PUD Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the development will 

promote the general welfare of the community. 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 
At this point, staff is including a recommendation for the Major Subdivision application (which includes a waiver for 
a reduced street Right of Way) and is recommending the Zoning Change and PUD Master Land Use Plan to be 
continued. It is staff’s intent to bring these two items to the April Planning Commission meeting for continued public 
hearing and with a recommendation for Planning Commission. 
 



Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and hereby recommend approval to the 
City Commission of the proposed major subdivision plat, EOLA Addition, including a waiver for a reduced street 
Right of Way, as outlined within the staff report, as the proposal complies with the adopted Area Plan, the 
standards of Article 20-06, and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code; 
 
And to continue the Zoning Change and PUD Master Land Use Plan to the April 6 Planning Commission 
meeting.” 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
3. Preliminary Plat 
4. Draft Amenities Plan  
5. Project narrative from applicant 
6. PUD Master Land Use Plan  
7. Project renderings from applicant  
 



Subject Property

42 S
T S

I94

CALICODR
S

26 AVE S

44 S
T S

AMBE R VALLEY PKWY S

23 AVE S
45 S

T S

32 AVE S

49
 S

T 
S

51
S

T
S SAFFR

O
N

 D
R

 S
21 AVE S

UR B
A

N
PL

AINS DR S

28 AVE S

22 AVE S

31 AVE S

30 AVE S

24 AVE S

BR
AN

DT

DR S

46 S
T S

U
M

B
E

R

CT S

AUBURN AVE S

RUSSET AVE S

47
ST

S

43 S
T SAGASSIZXING

S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Zone Change (GC with a C-O to GC with a 
Planned Unit Development [PUD] Overlay, repealing the C-O); 

PUD Master Land Use Plan; & Plat (Major)
EOLA Addition 

500
Feet

2500 & 2470 45th St S

City-Owned Property

Legend
SR-2SR-3
SR-4SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMUGI

AGDMUGC
GO

LC

MR-2MR-3

LIMR-1
City Limits



Subject Property

42 S
T S

I94

CALICODR
S

26 AVE S

44 S
T S

AMBE R VALLEY PKWY S

23 AVE S
45 S

T S

32 AVE S

49
 S

T 
S

51
S

T
S SAFFR

O
N

 D
R

 S
21 AVE S

UR B
A

N
PL

AINS DR S

28 AVE S

22 AVE S

31 AVE S

30 AVE S

24 AVE S

BR
AN

DT

DR S

46 S
T S

U
M

B
E

R

CT S

AUBURN AVE S

RUSSET AVE S

47
ST

S

43 S
T SAGASSIZXING

S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Zone Change (GC with a C-O to GC with a 
Planned Unit Development [PUD] Overlay, repealing the C-O); 

PUD Master Land Use Plan; & Plat (Major)
EOLA Addition 

500
Feet

2500 & 2470 45th St S

City-Owned Property



X:
\4

28
97

00
\2

02
02

9.
01

\T
EC

H
\S

U
R

VE
Y\

PL
AT

\2
02

02
9-

PL
AT

.D
W

G

2/
23

/2
02

1 
10

:1
7:

36
 A

M

PROJECT NO.
4289700-202029.01
SHEET 1 OF 2

Phone: 701-566-6450
meadhunt.com

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
I, Joshua J. Nelson, Professional Land Surveyor under the laws of the State of North Dakota, do hereby certify that this plat is a true and correct representation of the
survey of said subdivision; that the monuments for the guidance of future surveys have been located or placed in the ground as shown.

Dated this ________ day of _______________, 20___.

                                                                                                   
Joshua J. Nelson, Professional Land Surveyor No. LS-27292

State of North Dakota )
)ss

County of Cass )

On this ________ day of _______________, 20___, before me personally appeared Joshua J. Nelson, Professional Land Surveyor, known to me to be the person who
is described in and who executed the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same as his free act and deed.

Notary Public: ______________________________

CITY ENGINEER'S APPROVAL:
Approved by the Fargo City Engineer this ________ day of _______________, 20____.

Brenda E. Derrig, P.E.,  City Engineer

State of North Dakota )
)ss

County of Cass )

On this ________ day of _______________, 20____, before me personally appeared Brenda E. Derrig, Fargo City Engineer, known to me to be the person who is
described in and who executed the within instrument and acknowledged to me that she executed the same as her free act and deed.

Notary Public: ______________________________

FARGO PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVAL:
Approved by the City of Fargo Planning Commission this ________ day of _______________, 20____.

John Gunkelman, Chair
Fargo Planning Commission

State of North Dakota )
)ss

County of Cass )

On this ________ day of _______________, 20____, before me personally appeared John Gunkelman, Chair, Fargo Planning Commission, known to
me to be the person who is described in and who executed the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same on behalf of the
Fargo Planning Commission.

Notary Public: ______________________________

FARGO CITY COMMISSION APPROVAL:
Approved by the Board of City Commissioners and ordered filed this _______ day of _______________, 20____.

Timothy J. Mahoney, Mayor

Attest:  ________________________________________________
  Steven Sprague, City Auditor

State of North Dakota )
)ss

County of Cass )

On this ________ day of _______________, 20____, before me personally appeared Timothy J. Mahoney, Major, City of Fargo: and Steven Sprague,
City Auditor, City of Fargo, known to me to be the persons who are described in and who executed the within instrument and acknowledged to me that
they executed the same on behalf of the City of Fargo.

Notary Public: ______________________________

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE AND DEDICATION:
KNOWN ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That EOLA Landings, LLC, and the City of Fargo do hereby certify that we are the owners of
the land located in that part of the Northwest Quarter of Section 22, Township 139 North, Range 49 West, Cass County, North Dakota,
described as follows:

Lot Four, in Block One of Anderson Park Second Addition to the City of Fargo, situate in the County of Cass and the State of North Dakota.

Containing 16.7 acres, more or less.

And that said parties have caused the same to be surveyed and platted as "EOLA ADDITION" to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota,
and do hereby dedicate 24th Avenue South together with all Utility, Sidewalk and Trail Easements shown on said plat to the Public.

Owner:
City of Fargo
Claim of Interest in:

That part of Lot 4, Block 1, of said Anderson Park Second Addition, described as follows:

Commencing at the northwest corner of said Lot 4; thence South 02 degrees 28 minutes 18 seconds East, on the east right-of-way line of
45th Street South a distance of 164.51 feet to the point of beginning; thence North 87 degrees 31 minutes 42 seconds East a distance of
839.96 feet to the east line of said Lot 4; thence South 02 degrees 28 minutes 18 seconds East, along said east line, 73.00 feet; thence 
South 87 degrees 31 minutes 42 seconds West a distance of 839.96 feet to said east right-of-way line; thence North 02 degrees 28 
minutes 18 seconds West, on said east right-of-way, 73.00 feet to the point of beginning.

                                                                                                   
Timothy J. Mahoney, Mayor

State of North Dakota )
) SS

County of Cass )

On this         day of                           , 20     , appeared before me, Timothy J. Mahoney, Mayor, known to me to be the persons whose names
are subscribed to the above certificate and did acknowledge to me that they executed the same on behalf of the City of Fargo.

Notary Public: ______________________________

Owner:
EOLA Landholdings, LLC
Claim of Interest in:

That part of Lot 4, Block 1, of said Anderson Park Second Addition EXCEPTING THEREFROM, the following described tract:

Commencing at the northwest corner of said Lot 4; thence South 02 degrees 28 minutes 18 seconds East, on the east right-of-way line of
45th Street South a distance of 164.51 feet to the point of beginning; thence North 87 degrees 31 minutes 42 seconds East a distance of
839.96 feet to the east line of said Lot 4; thence South 02 degrees 28 minutes 18 seconds East, along said east line, 73.00 feet; thence 
South 87 degrees 31 minutes 42 seconds West a distance of 839.96 feet to said east right-of-way line; thence North 02 degrees 28 
minutes 18 seconds West, on said east right-of-way, 73.00 feet to the point of beginning.

                                                                                                   
Todd Berning, President

State of North Dakota )
) SS

County of Cass )

On this         day of                           , 20     , appeared before me, Todd Berning, President, known to me to be the persons whose names are
subscribed to the above certificate and did acknowledge to me that they executed the same on behalf of EOLA Landholdings, LLC

Notary Public: ______________________________

Mortgage Holder: Western State Bank

                                                                                                   
Chad Cota, VP/Business Banking Officer
State of North Dakota )

) SS
County of Cass )

On this         day of                                    , 20     , appeared before me, Chad Cota, VP/Business Banking Officer known to me to be the
person whose name is subscribed to the above certificate and did acknowledge to me that he executed the same on behalf of Western State
Bank.

Notary Public: ______________________________

EOLA ADDITION



Curve Table

Curve #

C1

C2

Length

85.81'

16.33'

Radius

355.00'

195.00'

Delta

13°50'57"

4°47'50"

Chord Length

85.60'

16.32'

Chord Bearing

S81°08'49"W

S76°37'51"W

2
(58,810)

BLOCK  TWO

73'

3
(174,241)

1
(77,066)

4
(113,960)

37
5.

16
'

37
.1

4'
26

8.
00

'
73

.0
0'

15
8.

06
'

16
4.

51
'

73
.0

0'

60
9.

90
'

399.00'
125.96'

315.00'

S0
2°

28
'1

8"
E 

10
8.

00
'

N87°31'42"E 160.00'

S0
2°

28
'1

8"
E 

16
0.

00
'

N87°31'42"E 155.01'

S87°31'42"W 155.01'

S0
2°

28
'1

8"
E 

11
3.

94
'

S87°31'41"W 130.27'

S88°04'18"W 366.11'

N
02

°2
8'

18
"W

 1
75

.0
0'

N87°31'42"E 160.00'

N
02

°2
8'

18
"W

 1
08

.0
0'

N88°04'18"E  619.38'

S0
2°

28
'1

8"
E 

 9
11

.3
6'

S88°04'18"W  380.00'

N
02

° 2
8'

 1
8"

W
80

.0
0'

S88°04'18"W  342.59'
C1

C2

N87°40'37"E  220.61'

N
02

°2
8'

18
"W

  8
47

.4
1'

16.76'
S74° 13' 21"W

BLOCK  ONE

10.0' UTILITY/SIDEWALK
EASEMENT

10.0' UTILITY/SIDEWALK
EASEMENT

N87°31'42"E 839.96'

S87°31'42"W 839.96'

1
(92,018)

5
(92,988)

N
02

°2
8'

26
"W

65
.3

1'
N

02
°2

8'
10

"W
65

.3
1'

S87°31'42"W
108.73'

S88°04'18"W 210.15'

S0
1°

55
'4

2"
E 

17
9.

74
'

S88°04'18"W
13.14'

10.0' TRAIL EASEMENT

2
(57,939)

474.96'

365.00'

365.01'

474.98'

N
02

°2
8'

18
"W

 1
60

.0
1'

LEGEND
MONUMENT IN PLACE

SET MONUMENT (5/8" REBAR CAPPED PLS-27292)

PLAT BOUNDARY

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

NEW EASEMENT LINE

MINOR CONTOUR

MAJOR CONTOUR

NEW BLOCK LINE

NEW LOT LINE

EXISTING EASEMENT LINE

NEGATIVE ACCESS EASEMENT

(5,000) LOT AREA (SQUARE FEET)

NOTES
1. GROUND DISTANCES ARE SHOWN AND ARE IN TERMS OF U.S. SURVEY FEET.

2. BENCHMARK TOP NUT OF HYDRANT LOCATED ± 400' EAST OF THE INTERSECTION
OF 26TH AVENUE SOUTH AND 45TH STREET SOUTH ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF 26TH
AVENUE SOUTH. ELEVATION = 909.79 (NAVD88)

3. NEGATIVE ACCESS EASEMENT, AS NOTED ON THE EOLA ADDITION, IS AN
EASEMENT DEDICATED AS PART OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION WHICH
EASEMENT DENIES DIRECT VEHICULAR ACCESS TO A STREET OF PUBLIC WAY
FROM THE LOT OR LOTS ADJACENT TO SUCH STREET OR WAY.  THE NEGATIVE
ACCESS EASEMENT IS NOT A STRIP OF LAND OR ANY CERTAIN WIDTH, BUT IS A
LINE COTERMINOUS WITH THE BOUNDARY OF THE ADJACENT LOT OR LOTS.

4. BASE FLOOD ELEVATION (BFE) IS 905.7 (NAVD88) PER CITY OF FARGO GIS.

5. ELEVATION CONTOURS DERIVED FROM FARGO 2015 LIDAR DATA.

EXISTING EASEMENT TO BE VACATED

X:
\4

28
97

00
\2

02
02

9.
01

\T
EC

H
\S

U
R

VE
Y\

PL
AT

\2
02

02
9-

PL
AT

.D
W

G

2/
23

/2
02

1 
10

:1
8:

18
 A

M

PROJECT NO.
4289700-202029.01
SHEET 2 OF 2

Phone: 701-566-6450
meadhunt.com

00 60 120

SCALE IN FEET
ORIENTATION OF THIS BEARING

SYSTEM IS CITY OF FARGO 2007 ADJ.

2221


 




    




EOLA ADDITION

BENCHMARK



 
Site Amenities and 

Project Plan 

EOLA Addition 

PRELIMINARY – February 23, 2021 

 

Location:  The subject property is legally referenced to as EOLA Addition including Lots 1 and 2 of Block 

1 and Lots 1-5 of Block 2, being a replat of Lot 4 Block 1 of Anderson Park Second Addition to the City 

of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. The property comprises approximately 16.7 acres 

 

Details: The project includes seven (7) General Commercial (GC) zoned lots on two (2) blocks and is 

generally located on the east side of the of Amber Valley Parkway and 45th Street intersection.  As approved, 

the project is intended to be a master-planned development that will consist of multiple mixed-use 

buildings, parking lots, a private drive, and green space.  

 

Right of Way (ROW): The project accommodates right of way dedications for public roadways and 

utilities, with specific details outlined below:   

 

24th Avenue South: This segment of 24th Avenue South from 45th Street South to the east edge of 

the EOLA Addition plat has been designated as a local roadway pursuant to §20.0702. 

 

- ROW dedication shall be 73 feet; 

- Street widths shall be 64 feet with diagonal parking allowed on both sides of the street, 

as shown on City of Fargo Standard Detail 4000-5.4 (2012). 

- Appropriate signage to be installed by the City of Fargo at which time public 

improvements are completed; 

- Street lighting shall be determined by the City Engineering Department and installed 

per city standards. 

- 6 foot sidewalks shall be incorporated into the boulevards. 4.5 feet is the minimum 

width required by §20.0611. This sidewalk sits in a dedicated Sidewalk/Utility 

Easement. 

- New Traffic Signals will be installed at the intersection of 24th Avenue South & 45th 

Street South. 

- New ADA compliant crosswalks and associated striping will also be installed at the 

intersection of 24th Avenue South & 45th Street South. 

 

Other:  

 

26th Avenue South 

- Approximately 150 lineal feet of road will be installed to the easternmost edge of the 

existing dedicated Right-of-Way. This road will taper down to a 24’ width that will 

connect to a private drive that loops up to 24th Avenue South.  

Shared-Use Path 

- Approximately 775 feet of a 12 foot wide shared-use path will be installed on the west 

side of the property. This path will be maintained by the Park District and will generally 

follow the winding pattern that is a prominent feature of the existing shared-use path 

located throughout the 45th Street South corridor. 

Miscellaneous 

- Developer shall be responsible for coordinating the placement of parking signage, 

street light locations, and trees with the appropriate City of Fargo department. These 

details shall be determined prior to construction of any public improvements.  

- A snow removal maintenance plan will be required for this project. The developer is 

responsible for all snow removal within the 24th Avenue South dedicated Right-of-

Way and sidewalks. 

 



PRELIMINARY - Site Amenities & Project Plan 
EOLA Addition  
Page 2 
 

2 
T:\Planning\_Planning Commission\Amenities Plans 

Storm Water Management: All stormwater located within the newly platted lots will be detained on-site 

via acceptable stormwater treatment practices before discharging to the municipal storm sewer system. 

The proposed private stormwater system will accommodate all detention and water quality requirements.   

 

Flood Protection: Portions of EOLA Addition fall within the existing FEMA floodplain.  It is 

acknowledged by the developer that all occupied structures located within the floodplain will be required 

to be removed from the floodplain via a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR).  It is also acknowledged by the 

developer that construction of structures shall comply with City of Fargo Flood Proofing Requirement 

when applicable.   

 

Engineering and Construction Improvements: The developer’s engineer, MBN Engineering, Inc., shall 

rely upon and collaborate with the City of Fargo Engineering Department on the design and construction 

of all public improvements, inclusive of wet underground facilities and boulevards, as applicable.  

 

  



PRELIMINARY - Site Amenities & Project Plan 
EOLA Addition  
Page 3 
 

3 
T:\Planning\_Planning Commission\Amenities Plans 

Funding of Improvements: The following shall apply respective to assessed public improvements: 

 

- Public improvements shall be assessed to the benefitting properties, pursuant to city 

policy 

 

This Amenities Plan is hereby approved. 

 

 

  ________________________________________  ________ 

________________________________________  ________ 

Blake Nybakken, EOLA Landholdings, LLC       date 

       

 

  

 ________________________________________  ________ 

 Brenda E. Derrig, City Engineer         date 

 
 







EOLA Development – Renderings  

 



EOLA Development – Renderings  

 



Item # 7 

 
City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: Rocking Horse East 2nd Addition Date: 2-16-2021 

Location: 

5454, 5458, 5462, 5466, 5470, 
5474, 5478, 5482, 5486, 5490, 
5494, and 5498 51st Avenue 
South. Staff Contact: Kylie Bagley 

Owner(s)/Applicant: 
Sheyenne Commercial Condos 
LLC/Jerry and Terasina Hintz Engineer: N/A 

Reason for Request: 

Conditional Use Permit for Warehouse, Manufacturing and Production, and Industrial 
Services in the GC, General Commercial zoning district on Lot 3, Block 2, Rocking 
Horse East 2nd Addition. 

Status: Planning Commission hearing March 2, 2021 
 
 
Existing  Proposed 
Land Use: Self Storage and Office  Land Use: Self Storage, Office, Warehouse, 

Manufacturing and Production, and Industrial Services 
Zoning:  GC, General Commercial    Zoning:  GC, General Commercial with a Conditional 

Use Permit (CUP) 
Uses Allowed: Colleges, community service, 
daycare centers of unlimited size, detention 
facilities, health care facilities, parks and open 
space, religious institutions, safety services, adult 
entertainment centers, offices, off-premise 
advertising, commercial parking, outdoor recreation 
and entertainment, retail sales and service, self-
storage, vehicle repair, limited vehicle service, 
aviation, surface transportation, and major 
entertainment events 
 
 

 Uses Allowed: Colleges, community service, daycare 
centers of unlimited size, detention facilities, health care 
facilities, parks and open space, religious institutions, 
safety services, adult entertainment centers, offices, off-
premise advertising, commercial parking, outdoor 
recreation and entertainment, retail sales and service, 
self-storage, vehicle repair, limited vehicle service, 
aviation, surface transportation, and major entertainment 
events 
 
Plus CUP to allow for warehouse, manufacturing and 
production, and industrial services uses. 
 

Maximum Building Coverage Allowed:  Maximum 
85% building coverage 

 Maximum Building Coverage Allowed: Maximum 85% 
building coverage 

 
 
Proposal: 
 
The applicant is seeking approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow Warehouse, Manufacturing and 
Production, and Industrial Service uses in a GC, General Commercial, zoning district on Lot 2, Block 3, Rocking 
Horse East 2nd Addition. The subject property is located at 5454, 5458, 5462, 5466, 5470, 5474, 5478, 5482, 5486, 
5490, 5494, and 5498 51st Avenue South. The applicant is requesting the CUP in order to allow industrial uses in 
the future. The subject property is divided into 12 condo units which are under one common ownership and are 
leased out individually.  
 
The applicant, Jerry and Terasina Hintz, are requesting the CUP based on their business, Steep Me A Cup of Tea 
which will be located at 5498 51st Avenue South. Steep Me A Cup of Tea is 45% online retail, 20% in store retail, 
25% in store light manufacturing and 10% service. In order to package their product on site and sell online they will 
need to have a CUP for manufacturing and production. The planning department feels it is appropriate that the 



CUP applies to all the condominium units and has included warehouse and industrial service uses to the CUP in 
order to match the surrounding CUPs in the area. 
 
This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 

Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses Include: 

 North: Across 51st Avenue South; GC, General Commercial with CUP with warehouse, office, and retail 
sales and service uses; 

 East: Across 53rd Street South; GC, General Commercial with CUP with warehouse and office uses; 
 South: Across 52nd Avenue South; GC, General Commercial with CUP with warehouse, office, and retail 

sales and service uses; 
 West: GC, General Commercial, with warehouse and office uses. 

 
Area Plans: 
The subject properties are located within the bounds of the 2003 Southwest Future Land Use Plan which 
designates this area as suitable for Commercial. 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Schools and Parks: 
 
Schools: The subject properties are located within the West Fargo School District and are served by the 
Independence Elementary, Liberty Middle and Sheyenne High schools. 
 
Neighborhood: The subject properties are located within the bounds of the Osgood Neighborhood. 
 
Parks: Veteran’s Park (4951 53rd Street S) abuts the property to the north.   
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: An off-road bike facility is located directly north of the subject properties and is a component 
of the metro area bikeways system. 
 
Staff Analysis: 
 

Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria (Section 20-0909.D) 
 

The following is a list of criteria that must be determined satisfied in order for a Conditional Use Permit to be 
approved: 
 

1. Does the proposed conditional use comply with all applicable provisions of the LDC and will it 
conform to the general intent and purpose of this LDC?  



According to Section 20-0104 of the LDC, the purpose of the LDC is to implement Fargo’s Comprehensive 
Plan and related policies in a manner that protects the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of 
Fargo. The proposed Conditional Use Permit includes conditions that are intended to address and mitigate, 
to the extent practical, the potential negative impact on future residential land-uses to the north and west. 
Therefore, staff finds that the proposal is consistent with the purpose of the LDC. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

2. Will the proposed conditional use at the specified location contribute to and promote the welfare or 
convenience of the public?  
Staff believes that the location of the proposed conditional use will contribute and promote the welfare and 
convenience of the public. Staff is proposing conditions which would address the negative impacts of the 
proposed uses but that also allow the neighborhood to utilize the convenience of these businesses.  
(Criteria Satisfied)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

 
3. Will the proposed conditional use cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the 

neighborhood in which it is to be located? 
Staff has no reason to believe the proposed use will cause injury to the value of other property in the 
vicinity. In accordance with the notification requirements of the City, notice of the proposal was sent to 
surrounding property owners as well as published in the Forum newspaper. To date, one inquiry has been 
received regarding the application with no noted concern. In addition, staff believes that the conditions 
outlined with the Conditional Use Permit further ensure that the industrial uses use will not negatively affect 
the value of the surrounding property over the long term. (Criteria Satisfied)  

 
4. Is the location and size of the conditional use, the nature and intensity of the operation conducted 

in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to it such that 
the conditional use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent the 
development and use of the neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district 
regulations?  In considering this criteria, location, nature, and height of buildings, structures, walls, 
and fences on the site are to be considered, as well as the nature and extent of proposed 
landscaping and buffering on the site.  
Staff does not believe that the location, size, nature or intensity of the use will prevent development and 
use of neighboring property in accordance with applicable zoning districts. The proposed uses are 
consistent with the adjacent commercial properties that have been granted similar Conditional Use Permits 
over the past several years. In addition to the proposed CUP conditions, use-specific standards of LDC 
Section 20-0402.R apply to industrial uses in the GC zoning district and provide for additional protection of 
the surrounding area. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
5. Are adequate utility, drainage, and other such necessary facilities and services provided or will they 

be at the time of development?  
The subject property has access to all necessary utilities and services. Staff is not aware of any 
deficiencies regarding drainage or utilities that would limit the ability to utilize the property as proposed. 
Based on this information staff finds that adequate utility, drainage, and other such necessary facilities and 
services are in place.  (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
6. Have adequate access roads or entrances and exit drives been provided and are they designed to 

prevent traffic hazards and to minimize traffic congestion in public streets?  
The commercial property has access to the public street system at 51rd Avenue South that can adequately 
accommodate truck/commercial traffic. In addition, the Engineering Department has had an opportunity to 
review the proposal and no comments or concerns have been forthcoming to indicate that there is a 
deficiency with the access roads or entrances and exit drives. To that end, staff finds that the proposed 
conditional use will not create traffic hazards or traffic congestion in the public streets.  
(Criteria Satisfied) 

  
Recommended Conditions: 
 

1) The property shall not be used in whole or in part for storage of rubbish or debris of any kind whatsoever 
nor for the storage of any property or items that will cause such lot to appear untidy, unclean or unsightly as 



determined by the Zoning Administrator; nor shall any substance, item or material be kept on any lot that 
will emit foul odors, including compost sites and fertilizer. All garbage containers, including dumpsters, shall 
be concealed from public view by fence, screen wall or building extension. 
 

2) No outdoor storage of equipment or supplies. 
 

3) Off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation areas (including circulation areas internal to storage 
yards) shall have an all-weather surface, as defined by the LDC.  
 

4) The manufacturing, production, or processing of food and/or animal products shall not be permitted. 
 

5) The manufacturing, production, or processing of hazardous chemicals or materials shall not be permitted. 
 

6) Any expansion of industrial uses shall require an amendment to the Conditional Use Permit with review and 
approval by the Planning Commission.  
 

7) The Conditional Use Permit shall terminate if all industrial uses cease for a period of more than 12 
consecutive months. 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and hereby move to approve the 
Conditional Use Permit to allow for Warehouse, Manufacturing and Production, and Industrial Services in the GC, 
General Commercial as the proposal complies with Section 20-0909.D (1-6) and all other requirements of the LDC, 
with the following conditions: 
 

1) The property shall not be used in whole or in part for storage of rubbish or debris of any kind whatsoever 
nor for the storage of any property or items that will cause such lot to appear untidy, unclean or unsightly as 
determined by the Zoning Administrator; nor shall any substance, item or material be kept on any lot that 
will emit foul odors, including compost sites and fertilizer. All garbage containers, including dumpsters, shall 
be concealed from public view by fence, screen wall or building extension. 
 

2) No outdoor storage of equipment or supplies. 
 

3) Off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation areas (including circulation areas internal to storage 
yards) shall have an all-weather surface, as defined by the LDC.  
 

4) The manufacturing, production, or processing of food and/or animal products shall not be permitted. 
 

5) The manufacturing, production, or processing of hazardous chemicals or materials shall not be permitted. 
 

6) Any expansion of industrial uses shall require an amendment to the Conditional Use Permit with review and 
approval by the Planning Commission.  
 

7) The Conditional Use Permit shall terminate if all industrial uses cease for a period of more than 12 
consecutive months. 

 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: March 2, 2021 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
 

 



Subject Property

47 AVE S

52 AVE S

51 AVE S

48 AVE S

53 AVE S

49 AVE S

51 ST S

VETER
AN

S BLVD
 S

53 ST S

50 AVE S

55
 S

T 
S

54 ST S

56
S

T
S ALY N

HA
R

V
E

S
T

D
R

S

52 ST S

49AVES

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Conditional Use Permit 
Rocking Horse East Second Addition 

300
Feet

5454, 5458, 5462, 5466, 5470, 5474, 5478, 
5482, 5486, 5490, 5494 & 5498 51st Ave S

Legend
SR-2
SR-3
SR-4SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMU
GI

AGDMUGC
GO

LC

MR-2MR-3

LIMR-1
City Limits



Subject Property

47 AVE S

52 AVE S

51 AVE S

48 AVE S

53 AVE S

49 AVE S

51 ST S

VETER
AN

S BLVD
 S

53 ST S

50 AVE S

55
 S

T 
S

54 ST S

56
S

T
S ALY N

HA
R

V
E

S
T

D
R

S

52 ST S

49AVES

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Conditional Use Permit 
Rocking Horse East Second Addition 

300
Feet

5454, 5458, 5462, 5466, 5470, 5474, 5478, 
5482, 5486, 5490, 5494 & 5498 51st Ave S



Page 1 of 3 
 

Agenda Item # 8 
 

City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: Urban Plains by Brandt Fifth Addition Date: 2/23/2021 
Location: 5600 28th Avenue South, 2850, 

2901, 2970 & 2975 Uptown Way 
South 

Staff Contact: Maggie Squyer 

Legal Description: Lots 1-5, Block 1, Urban Plains by Brandt Fifth Addition   
Owner(s)/Applicant: Urban Plains Land Co, LLC and 

Uptown and Main V LLC 
Engineer: Houston Engineering 

Entitlements Requested: To repeal and reestablish a Conditional Use Permit for residential living in the LC, 
Limited Commercial, zoning district.  

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing: March 2, 2021 
 
 
Existing  Proposed 
Land Use: food service/vacant   Land Use: mixed-use 
Zoning: LC, Limited Commercial with a Conditional 
Overlay and CUP for residential use on five lots  

 Zoning: LC, Limited Commercial with a Conditional 
Overlay and CUP for residential use on one lot  

Uses Allowed: Limited Commercial allows 
colleges, community service, day care facilities of 
unlimited size, health care facilities, parks and 
open areas, religious institutions, safety services, 
basic utilities, offices, off-premise advertising signs, 
commercial parking, retail sales and services and 
telecommunications facilities of limited size.   
 
Self-service storage, vehicle repair and limited 
vehicle service are typically allowed in LC, but are 
prohibited by the Conditional Overlay (5153).  
  

 

 Uses Allowed: No change 

Maximum Density: Existing Conditional Use Permit 
allows 24 units per acre 

 Maximum Density: Requested Conditional Use Permit 
to allow 34 units per acre 

 
Proposal: 
The applicant is seeking to repeal an existing Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for residential living on Lots 1-5, Block 
1, Urban Plains by Brandt Fifth Addition and reestablish a CUP for residential living with a higher density allotment 
on Lot 1, Block 1, Urban Plains by Brandt Fifth Addition. The applicant intends to construct a four story mixed-use 
building on the subject property with main floor retail space and 110 multi-dwelling residential units.  
 
This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 
Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. 
 
Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts: 

• North: LC, Limited Commercial with retail sales and services 
• East: MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential with apartments and GC, General Commercial, with a health 

club 
• South: LC, Limited Commercial that is currently vacant 
• West: West Fargo   

 
Area Plans: 



Page 2 of 3 

The subject property was included in the 2001 Southwest Fargo 
Growth Plan. In this plan, Urban Plains by Brandt Fifth Addition 
was identified as Commercial property.  

Context: 
Neighborhood: Urban Plains Neighborhood 

Schools: The subject property is located within the West Fargo Public School District and is served by Freedom 
Elementary, Liberty Middle, and Sheyenne High Schools.   

Parks: The project site is located within a half-mile of Urban Plains Park (3020 51st Street South) and Brandt 
Crossing Park (5009 33rd Avenue South) which offer amenities of a basketball court, dog park, picnic tables, 
playground equipment and recreational trails.  

Pedestrian / Bicycle: A shared use path runs along all four sides of the subject property.  

Staff Analysis: 
Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria (Section 20-0909.D) 
The following is a list of criteria that must be determined satisfied in order for a Conditional Use Permit to be 
approved: 

1. Does the proposed conditional use comply with all applicable provisions of the LDC and will it
conform to the general intent and purpose of this LDC?
The purpose of the LDC is to implement Fargo’s Comprehensive Plan in a way that will protect the general
health, safety, and welfare of the citizens. The proposed CUP for residential living will allow the developer
to create a mixed-use building in the Limited Commercial zoning district while meeting the dimensional
standards of the LC zone and the general development standards of the LDC. Staff finds this proposal is
consistent with the purpose of the LDC, the GO2030 Comprehensive Plan, and other adopted policies of
the City. (Criteria Satisfied)

2. Will the proposed conditional use at the specified location contribute to and promote the welfare or
convenience of the public?
Staff suggests that establishing pockets of low-intensity commercial development near high-density
residential development promotes convenience by providing the opportunity for positive neighborhood-level
interactions between citizens and businesses. The proposed CUP for residential living will contribute to the
convenience of the public by supporting mixed-use development near an arterial roadway in a rapidly
growing part of the city.
(Criteria Satisfied)



Page 3 of 3 
 

3. Will the proposed conditional use cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the 
neighborhood in which it is to be located? 
Staff has no data to suggest the proposed use would cause substantial injury to the value of other property 
in the neighborhood. In accordance with Section 20-0901.F of the LDC, notices of the proposed use were 
sent out to property owners within 300 feet of the subject property. To date, staff has received no inquiries 
about the project and no letters of opposition. (Criteria Satisfied)  

 
4. Is the location and size of the conditional use, the nature and intensity of the operation conducted 

in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to it such that 
the conditional use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent the 
development and use of the neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district 
regulations?  In considering this criteria, location, nature, and height of buildings, structures, walls, 
and fences on the site are to be considered, as well as the nature and extent of proposed 
landscaping and buffering on the site.  
The proposed mixed-use development will not dominate the immediate neighborhood or prevent any other 
site from developing in a manner allowed by zoning district regulations. The subject property is adjacent to 
apartment complexes to the east and mixed-use residential/commercial development to the north. (Criteria 
Satisfied) 

 
5. Are adequate utility, drainage, and other such necessary facilities and services provided or will they 

be at the time of development?  
The property has access to all necessary utilities and services. Staff is not aware of any deficiencies 
regarding drainage or utilities that would limit the ability of the applicant to utilize the property as proposed. 
Based on this information, staff finds that the adequate utility, drainage, and other such necessary facilities 
and services are in place. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
6. Have adequate access roads or entrances and exit drives been provided and are they designed to 

prevent traffic hazards and to minimize traffic congestion in public streets?  
The subject property has access to 28th Avenue South, 55th Street South and Uptown Way South, which 
are fully constructed local roadways. All driveways will be reviewed and permitted in accordance with 
Section 20-0702 of the Land Development Code. (Criteria Satisfied) 

  
Recommended Conditions: 

• The maximum residential density shall be 34 units per acre.  

Staff Recommendation: 
Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and hereby move to repeal the existing 
Conditional Use Permit on Lots 1-5, Block 1, Urban Plains by Brandt Fifth Addition and reestablish a Conditional 
Use Permit to allow residential living in the LC, Limited Commercial, zoning district on Lot 1, Block 1, Urban Plains 
by Brandt Fifth Addition as the proposal complies with Section 20-0909.D (1-6) and all other requirements of the 
LDC, with the following conditions: 

• The maximum residential density shall be 34 units per acre.” 

Planning Commission Recommendation: March 3, 2021 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
 



Subject Property

32 AVE S

VETER
AN

S BLVD

SETER PKW
Y

S

49
 S

T 
S

51 ST S

23 AVE S
55

ST
S

UP
TO

W
N

W
A

Y
S

AMBER VALLEY PKWY S

28 AVE S

30 AVE S

31 AVE S

A
M

B
E

R VALL E
Y

C
T

S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Repeal and Replace the Existing 
Conditional Use Permit 

Urban Plains by Brandt Fifth Addition 

500
Feet

5600 28th Ave S
2850, 2901, 2970 & 2975 Uptown Way S 

Legend
SR-2SR-3
SR-4SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMU
GI

AGDMUGC
GO

LC

MR-2MR-3

LIMR-1
City Limits



Subject Property

32 AVE S

VETER
AN

S BLVD

SETER PKW
Y

S

49
 S

T 
S

51 ST S

23 AVE S
55

ST
S

UP
TO

W
N

W
A

Y
S

AMBER VALLEY PKWY S

28 AVE S

30 AVE S

31 AVE S

A
M

B
E

R VALL E
Y

C
T

S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Repeal and Replace the Existing 
Conditional Use Permit 

Urban Plains by Brandt Fifth Addition 

500
Feet

5600 28th Ave S
2850, 2901, 2970 & 2975 Uptown Way S 



Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Item # 9 

City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: Chas A. Roberts Addition Date: 2/23/2021 
Location: 615 9th Avenue South Staff Contact: Maggie Squyer 
Legal Description: Parts of Lots 1, 23 and 24, Block K, Chas A. Roberts Addition 
Owner(s)/Applicant: Paul & Kathryn Anderson Engineer: N/A 

Entitlements Requested:  Zone Change (from SR-3, Single-Dwelling Residential and NC, Neighborhood 
Commercial)  

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing: March 2, 2021 

Existing Proposed 
Land Use: Retail Sales and Services Land Use: Unchanged 
Zoning: SR-3, Single-Dwelling Residential with a 
Historic District Overlay  

Zoning: NC, Neighborhood Commercial with a 
Historic District Overlay  

Uses Allowed: SR-3 allows detached housing, 
attached housing, duplexes, group living restricted 
residency, day care facilities of limited size, parks and 
open areas, religious institutions, safety services, 
schools, basic utilities, and limited telecommunications 
facilities.  

Uses Allowed: NC allows detached housing, attached 
housing, duplexes, multi-dwelling structures, 
community service, day care facilities of limited size, 
parks and open areas, religious institutions, safety 
services, basic utilities, offices, retail sales and 
services, and limited telecommunications facilities.   

Maximum Building Coverage Allowed in SR-3: 40% Dimensional Standards of the NC zoning district 
are influenced by adjacent zoning districts  

Proposal: 
The applicant is seeking approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the subject property from SR-3, Single-
Dwelling Residential to NC, Neighborhood Commercial. The proposed low-intensity commercial zoning district 
reflects the recent use of the property as a stained glass workshop as well as the future use of the property as an 
antique furniture consignment and repair shop. The business owner anticipates that customers will spend only 10-
15 minutes dropping-off or collecting furniture from the shop, with the occasional customer stopping to purchase 
refinished, antique furniture. 

In August of 2000, a variance was granted for a building addition on the rear of the existing structure, which 
eliminated any area available for off-street parking. In 2013, a second variance was granted that allowed the owner 
to reconstruct a portion of the existing shop, maintaining the original building footprint. The building fronts 9th 
Avenue South, which is subject to seasonal parking restrictions from November 1st- April 15th but allows parking on 
both sides of the street from April 16th- October 31st. The property owner is aware of these restrictions, which were 
established prior to the approval of both variances.  

This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 
Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. 

Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts: 
• North: MR-2, Multi-Dwelling Residential with an apartment building
• East: SR-3, Single-Dwelling Residential with a detached house
• South: SR-3, Single Dwelling Residential with a detached house
• West: SR-3, Single-Dwelling Residential with an apartment building

Area Plans: 
The subject property is located in the Hawthorne Neighborhood, which is currently under evaluation as part of the 
Core Neighborhoods Plan.          
Context: 
Neighborhood: The subject property is located within the Hawthorne Neighborhood. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Schools: The subject property is located within the Fargo Public School District and is served by Clara Barton 
Hawthorne Elementary, Ben Franklin Middle and North High schools. 
 
Parks: Island Park (302 7th Street South) and Dill Hill Park (652 6th Avenue South) are located within a quarter-mile 
of the subject property. These parks provide baseball/softball fields, a basketball court, tennis courts, a swimming 
pool, playground equipment, and picnic shelters.  
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: A bike route is located one block west of the property along 7th Street South.  
Staff Analysis: 
Zoning  
Section 20-906. F (1-4) of the LDC stipulates the following criteria be met before a zone change can be approved: 
 
1. Is the requested zoning change justified by a change in conditions since the previous zoning 
classification was established or by an error in the zoning map?  
Staff is unaware of any error in the zoning map as it relates to this property. The proposed Neighborhood 
Commercial zoning district is consistent with the existing and proposed use of the subject property. Approval of the 
proposed zone change would bring the subject property into compliance with Section 20-04 of the Land 
Development Code, ending the long history of the property as a nonconforming use. Staff finds that the change in 
zoning is justified as the owner has a clear picture of the type of development that will occupy the land. (Criteria 
Satisfied)  
 
2. Are the City and other agencies able to provide the necessary public services, facilities, and programs to 
serve the development allowed by the new zoning classifications at the time the property is developed?  
City staff and other applicable review agencies have reviewed this proposal. Staff finds no deficiencies in the ability 
to provide all of the necessary services to the site. (Criteria satisfied)  
 
3. Will the approval of the zoning change adversely affect the condition or value of the property in the 
vicinity?  
Staff has no documentation or evidence to suggest that the approval of this zoning change would adversely affect 
the condition or value of the property in the vicinity. Written notice of the proposal was sent to all property owners 
within 300 feet of the subject property. To date, Planning staff has received two inquiries about the project and no 
letters of opposition. Staff finds that the approval of the zoning change will not adversely affect the condition or 
value of the property in the vicinity. (Criteria satisfied) 
 
4. Is the proposed amendment consistent with the purpose of this LDC, the Growth Plan, and other adopted 
policies of the City?   
The purpose of the LDC is to implement Fargo’s Comprehensive Plan and related policies in a manner that protects 
the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of Fargo. Although not adopted, this request is consistent with 
the findings of the Hawthorne Neighborhood Implementation Brief (a subset of the Core Neighborhoods Plan) 
which cites an interest in business districts and properties that integrate well and contribute to the desirability of the 
neighborhood. Staff finds this proposal is consistent with the purpose of the LDC, the 2007 Growth Plan, and other 
adopted policies of the City.  (Criteria satisfied) 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and move to recommend approval to the 
City Commission of the proposed zoning map amendment from SR-3, Single-Dwelling Residential to NC, 
Neighborhood Commercial as the proposal complies with the 2007 Growth Plan, Standards of Section 20-0906.F 
(1-4), and all other applicable requirements of the LDC.”   
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: March 2, 2021 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
 



Subject Property9 AVE S

10 AVE S

8 
ST

 S

7 
ST

 S

AL
Y 

N

6 
ST

 S

8 AVE S

5 ST S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Zone Change (SR-3 to NC)
Chas A Roberts Addition 

100
Feet

615 9th Ave S

Legend
SR-2SR-3
SR-4SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMU
GI

AGDMUGC
GO

LC

MR-2MR-3

LIMR-1
City Limits



Subject Property9 AVE S

10 AVE S

8 
ST

 S

7 
ST

 S

AL
Y 

N

6 
ST

 S

8 AVE S

5 ST S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Zone Change (SR-3 to NC)
Chas A Roberts Addition 

100
Feet

615 9th Ave S



Subject Property9 AVE S

10 AVE S

8 
ST

 S

7 
ST

 S

AL
Y 

N

6 
ST

 S

8 AVE S

5 ST S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Zone Change (SR-3 to NC)
Chas A Roberts Addition 

100
Feet

615 9th Ave S



Subject Property9 AVE S

10 AVE S

8 
ST

 S

7 
ST

 S

AL
Y 

N

6 
ST

 S

8 AVE S

5 ST S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Zone Change (SR-3 to NC)
Chas A Roberts Addition 

100
Feet

615 9th Ave S

Legend
SR-2SR-3
SR-4SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMU
GI

AGDMUGC
GO

LC

MR-2MR-3

LIMR-1
City Limits



Subject Property9 AVE S

10 AVE S

8 
ST

 S

7 
ST

 S

AL
Y 

N

6 
ST

 S

8 AVE S

5 ST S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 2, 2021

Zone Change (SR-3 to NC)
Chas A Roberts Addition 

100
Feet

615 9th Ave S



 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO: Fargo Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Jim Gilmour, Director of Strategic Planning and Research 
 Aaron Nelson, Planning Coordinator 
 
DATE: February 23, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Review of Renewal Plan for consistency with Go2030 
 

 
At the direction of the City Commission, City staff has prepared a Renewal Plan for the area 
adjacent to the Red River in downtown Fargo. The plan is attached for your review. 
 
The plan was prepared to be consistent with the City’s comprehensive plan and downtown plans. 
As part of the review process, the Renewal Plan is referred to the Planning Commission for 
recommendation as to its conformity with the GO2030 Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Staff is requesting that the Planning Commission make a recommendation to the City 
Commission that this Renewal Plan is consistent with the Go2030 Comprehensive Plan of the City 
of Fargo and the Downtown Fargo InFocus Plan. 
 
Recommended Motion: 
“…to recommend to the City Commission that the proposed Renewal Plan is consistent with the 
Go2030 Comprehensive Plan of the City of Fargo.” 
 
 
Attachment 

Planning & Development 
225 4th Street North 

Fargo, ND 58102 
Office: 701.241.1474  |  Fax: 701.241.1526 

 

Email: planning@FargoND.gov 
 

www.FargoND.gov 














































	Items A-C Combined
	03-02-2021 PC Agenda
	PC Minutes 02-02-2021
	PC Agenda Items Map

	03-02-2021 220 Addition (zone change) (minor plat)
	3-2-21 Brewhalla Addition (plat, PUD)
	3-2-21 EOLA Addition (plat, PUD)
	03-2-2021 Rocking Horse East 2nd Addition (CUP)
	03-02-2021 Urban Plains by Brandt Fifth Addition (CUP)
	03-02-2021 Chas A Roberts Addition (zone change)
	03-02-2021 Item E Review of Proposed TIF
	Planning Commission Memo - River TIF
	Riverfront TIF Plan - January 21




